Space Information and Management System (SIMS) 4.0 User's Guide





Facilities Information and Technology Services http://go.osu.edu/fits Revised: 03.12.2018

SIMS 4.0 is referenced by the product name Evolve or EvolveFM throughout this document.

Evolve FM®

Space & Asset Management, Introduction to Evolve FM User Guide, version 2018

Published by:

Simple Solutions FM, LLC 630 Liberty Square Road Boxborough, MA 01719 www.simplesolutionsfm.com

© Copyright 2010-2018 Simple Solutions FM, LLC All rights reserved.

The information in this user guide is subject to change without notice.

This publication, or parts thereof, may not be reproduced in any form, stored in a retrieval system or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic, mechanical, photocopying, recording, scanning or otherwise, for any purpose, without the prior written permission of Simple Solutions FM, LLC.

Trademarks:

Evolve FM is the registered trademark of CAFM Resources, LLC.

Microsoft®, Access®, Excel®, Windows®, SQL Server® are registered trademarks of Microsoft Corporation.

Adobe® Reader® are registered trademarks of Adobe Systems Inc.

All other brand names, product names, or trademarks belong to their respective holders.

<u>LIMIT OF LIABILITY/DISCLAIMER OF WARRANTY:</u> Simple Solutions FM, LLC (SSFM) makes no representations or warranties with respect to the accuracy or completeness of the contents of this work and specifically disclaims all warranties, including without limitation warranties of fitness for a particular purpose, and makes such materials available solely on an "as-is" basis. No warranty may be created or extended by sales or promotional materials. In no event shall Simple Solutions FM, LLC be liable to anyone for special, collateral, incidental, or consequential damages in connection with or arising out of acquisition or use of these materials. The sole and exclusive liability to Simple Solutions FM, LLC regardless of the form of action, shall not exceed the purchase price, if any, of the materials described herein. Neither the publisher nor the author shall be liable for damages arising here from.

Simple Solutions FM, LLC reserves the right to revise and improve its training materials as it sees fit. This publication describes the state of this product at the time of its publication, and may not reflect the product at all times in the future.

Table of Contents

SECTION 1: USING EVOLVE FM	8
CHAPTER 1.1: GETTING STARTED	9
About the Evolve FM Interface	9
The Start-Up Screen	9
The Application Menu Bar	10
The Applications Menu	10
How to Set Your Default Module	11
About Dialog Forms	11
Dialog Controls	11
Dialog Select Record Grid	13
CHAPTER 1.2: APPLICATION GRIDS 1	14
About Application Grids 1	4
The Grid Interface 1	14
Grid Menu Controls	16
Grid Display Options1	16
Search & Filter Features 1	17
Filter Bar 1	17
Quick Search 1	8
Advanced Search 1	8
Search Criteria Operators	21
How to Search for Dates	22
Grid Views	22
Column Header Controls	23
Grid Views as Tabular Reports	24
Creating a Grid View	24

Export Data	
About the Exported Data	
CHAPTER 1.3: DRAWING VIEWER	
The Drawing Viewer Interface	
The Four Main Components	
The Viewer	
The Drawing Navigator Panel	
The Drawing Options Panel	
The Drawing Grids	
How to Use the Drawing Grids	
How to Use Search Drawings	
CHAPTER 1.4: DRAWING LABELS	
About Drawing Labels	
Label Controls	
Label Style, Permissions, & Scale Factor	
The Manage Labels Dialog	40
Working with Drawing Labels	
Turn Labels On/Off	
Move & Resize Labels	
Reset a Label Location	
Set Your Default Label Styles	43
Create a New Label Style	
Edit/Delete a Label Style	
CHAPTER 1.5: DRAWING THEMES	46
About Drawing Themes	
Theme Attributes	
Theme Type	
Theme Scale Factor	
User Defined Themes	
Manage Themes Dialog	
Working with Drawing Themes	51
Turn a Theme On/Off	

Change the Legend Key Color or Hatch Pattern	51
Add the Key Count / Area to the Legend	. 51
Create a User Defined Theme	. 51
Edit/Delete a User Defined Theme	. 52
CHAPTER 1.7: PROPERTIES, BUILDINGS, FLOOR, & SPACE	. 54
The Evolve FM Space Structure	. 55
Properties	. 55
Properties Application Grid	. 55
Property Dialog	. 56
Buildings	. 57
Buildings Application Grid	. 57
Building Dialog	. 58
Floors	60
Floors Application Grid	. 60
Floor Dialog	60
Space	62
Linked vs. Unlinked	. 62
Space Application Grid	. 62
Space Dialog	63
CHAPTER 1.8: CONTACTS	65
About Contacts	66
People Hierarchy	. 66
Contacts Application Grid	. 66
Contact Dialog	. 68
Add, Edit, Remove a Contact	. 68
Add Contacts to a Data Record	69
The Contacts Tab	. 69
The Record Contact Dialog	70
CHAPTER 1.9: OCCUPANTS	
About Occupants	73
Occupants Application Grid	. 73
Occupant Dialog	. 73

Add, Edit, Remove an Occupant	. 75
Move an Occupant In or Out of a Space	. 76
Occupant Dialog Move	. 76
Space Dialog Move	. 76
The Space Occupant Dialog	. 77
CHAPTER 1.11: PICK & CLICK OCCUPANT AND ASSET MOVES	. 79
Pick & Click Moves	. 80
Preparing for Pick & Click Moves	. 80
To Move Occupants into Spaces	. 80
To Move Assets into Spaces	81
Pick & Click Between Drawings	. 81
CHAPTER 1.12: DOCUMENTS	82
About Documents	83
Document Hierarchy	83
Documents Application Grid	83
Document Dialog	84
Working with Documents	85
Upload or Download Documents	85
Edit or Remove Documents	85
Attach a Document to a Data Record	86
The Documents Tab	86
CHAPTER 1.13: PICTURES	87
About Pictures	87
Pictures Application Grid	. 88
Picture Dialog	88
Working with Pictures	89
Upload or Download Pictures	89
Edit or Remove Pictures	90
Attach a Picture to a Data Record	91
Picture Tab	91
CHAPTER 1.14: REPORTING	92
About the Reporting Module	93

-	The Reporting Interface	. 93
Repo	orts	. 95
I	Report Grid	95
Work	king with Reports	96
I	Run a Report	96
Dyna	amic Spreadsheets	. 96
ł	Report Grid	97
1	About the Data Scope	97
1	About Grid Filters	98
ι	User Defined Filters	99
Work	king with Dynamic Spreadsheets	101
I	Run a Report from Dynamic Spreadsheets	101
(Create a User Defined Filter	102
/	Apply/Clear a User Defined Filter	102
I	Edit/Delete a User Defined Filter	102

Section 1: Using Evolve FM

8

Chapter 1.1: Getting Started

About the Evolve FM Interface

The Evolve FM user interface is designed for mobility; it is designed to automatically resize to the screen size the application is being viewed on. Log in from a computer, a tablet, or a phone, and the interface layout will display to fit your device.

The Start-Up Screen

The Start-Up screen, shown in the image below, is the default screen display in Evolve FM. You can bypass this screen and automatically display a selected module by choosing a <u>Default Module in your User Profile</u>.



Device Menu Display

Menu icons will display differently depending upon the screen size of the device you are logged in on. Large

Screens

Larger screens will display individual icons for specific actions in Evolve.



Smaller screens will display the More Actions icon in place of the individual icons. The More Actions icon, when clicked, will display a flyout menu with the same actions available in the individual icon display.



Q

The Application Menu Bar

Located along the top edge of the Evolve FM interface is the Application Menu Bar.

1		2345			
of the second se	olve FM ered by Evolve	▲ 🗋 🕀 🕐			
ITEM	CONTROL	DESCRIPTION			
1	Show Applications	Click to show the Applications Menu. Use this menu to navigate between all of your Evolve FM modules (Space, Assets, Drawings, etc.). The modules listed in the Applications Menu are controlled by your user permissions.			
2	Profile	Click to open the Profile dialog. Use the Profile dialog to change your user name, select your default language, and to select your default module.			
3	Layout	Click to show the screen Layout Options. You can choose a default screen layout for the device you are logged in on. Each time you log into Evolve FM on that device, the screen will automatically format to the device type selected here. Options include Computer, Tablet, Phone, and Auto Detect, which will automatically layout the Evolve FM interface based on the device type used at log in.			
4	Logout	Click to log out of Evolve FM.			
5	Help	Click to show the Evolve FM Help options. The Evolve FM version ID is also located here.			

NOTE!

Smaller screens will display options 2-5 on the More Actions flyout menu.

The Applications Menu

The Applications Menu is used to navigate between all of the Evolve FM application modules included with your organization's Evolve FM facility management software.

Evolve Powered I	: FM by Evolve	🚨 🕀 🖵 🕀 🖓
🛄 Asse	ets	Getting Started
🗷 Con	tacts	Welcome to EvolveFM, the next evolution in facility management solutions. EvolveFM provides a simple user
Doc	uments	interface that can be used on a desktop computer, your favorite tablet and even your smart phone! The sections below provide instructions on how to get started with EvolveFM, including how to access application modules, setting a default module and more.
Drav	vings	
3 (2		Selecting an Application
ITEM	CONTROL	DESCRIPTION
1	Show / Hide	Click to show/hide the Applications Menu.
2	Module List	Click the module name in the application list to access that module.
3	Open in New Tab	Click the module icon to open a module in a new browser tab. This allows you to have two or more modules open at one time without tying up an additional user license. The open tabs are single module access only; you must return to your open licensed Evolve FM browser tab to repossess access to the Applications Menu.

Application Modules

The Applications Menu includes modules based on the software purchased by your organization, and the user permissions configured by your Evolve FM administrator.

Below is a table of the modules included with the Evolve FM Space & Asset Management software.

MODULE	DESCRIPTION
Facilities Information	View drawings and manage related data.
Archived Projects	View Record Documents from completed construction projects
Reporting	Produce drawing & data reports.
Space	Manage properties, buildings, floors, space, and occupants within the organization.

How to Set Your Default Module

You can bypass the Start-Up screen and open Evolve FM to a specific module (typically the module you use most) by setting a Default Module in your User Profile as outlined below.

- 1. Click the Profile icon to open the Profile dialog (or the <u>More Actions</u> flyout menu, and then Profile).
- 2. In the Default Module pick list, select a module.

About Dialog Forms

Evolve FM dialog forms are used to enter, edit, and view, data records in the Evolve FM database.

Dialog Controls

All dialog forms are comprised of the same overall components. The Space dialog shown below, includes the general data tabs and dialog controls, found on most dialog forms in Evolve FM.

SPACE DIALOG

ttributes Detail FICM	Picture	Contacts	Occupants	Assets	Allocation	Documents	Work Orders
د > 🔋 ک							
6 7							
Space ID*			Tag				
B106		A	a 000003	922			
Space Name			Sche	dulable			
		Д	Alloc	ate Manuall	y		
Description			Area				
		0	229				#
		P	Area 2				
Property*							#
Manchester NH			Occupa	ncy			

Note! You can resize the dialog by pulling & stretching the edges of the form.

	~	•	-
	-	1	_
		,	_
-			

ITEM	CONTROL	DESCRIPTION
1	Active Record	Identifies the active data record.
2	Maximize	Click to maximize the dialog to full view.
3	Exit	Click to cancel changes & close the dialog.
4	Tab Bar	Each data tab stores additional information about the active data record.
5	Record Selector	< Move backwards one data record. > Move forward one data record.
6	Service Request	Click to open the Request dialog. The Evolve FM Operations & Maintenance software module is required for this feature. **This button does not work in SIMS**
7	Open Drawing	Click to open the Space Location Viewer, where the space related to the dialog record is highlighted. Use the zoom controls to pan & zoom the drawing. Available on the Space, Asset, Occupant, and Work Order dialogs.
8	Required Data Field	A red asterisk next to a data field identifies required data.
9	Save	Click to save data changes & close the dialog.
10	Cancel	Click to cancel data changes & close the dialog.
11	Scroll Bar	Scroll up/down to access dialog data fields.

Smaller Screens

When the dialog is resized to a smaller size, the Tab Bar will minimize to a selection list.

SPACE DIALOG, SMALL SCREEN



Dialog Select Record Grid

Select Record Dialog grids, as illustrated in the Select Asset dialog below, have the same search & filter features found on the Evolve FM application grids. Use these controls to search & select data records.

- Active Column Control
- Filter Bar
- Quick Search
- Advanced Search. Click the \Xi Filters icon to expand the search panel.

SELECT ASSET DIALOG

Ŧ		Search for	Q 😒
Picture	∱ Asset ID	Asset Name	^
	8012719	JEFJ101	АВ
	8012720	JEFB10204	с
	8012724	JEFJ102	D
	8012733	JEFB10403	F
	8012750	JEFB10702	н
	8012762	JEFB10404	~
1199	A	sset ID	
1199			▼ ±↑

Chapter 1.2: Application Grids About Application Grids

The application grids throughout Evolve FM are used to manage your data records stored in the Evolve FM database. The grids are also designed to be used for interactive tabular reporting, providing search & filter tools, grid column arrangement & save tools, and the ability to export the grid data to EXCEL format.

The Grid Interface

The grid interface provides many controls used for working with data records. The grid view, shown below, displays individual data records in rows similar to a spreadsheet, and each column of the grid displays the Evolve FM attribute data assigned to each data record.

(1	7					
Space					± 5	⊒∋ 🕐
roperties Buil	dings Floors Space Occupants 2				\sim	
- to 🛛		-		Search for	(7)	20
† Space ID	Space Name Description	Space Category 6	Space Class	Space Sub Class	Area	^ *
015		Service Area	Primary Circulation	Vestibule	37.03	A
01		Usable Area	Business Support	Conference 18	651.36	в
101A		Usable Area	Storage	Storage Closet	3.17	c
101B		Usable Area	Storage	Storage Closet	6.92	D
3101C		Usable Area	Storage	Storage Closet	24.08	E
B101D	(4)	Usable Area	Storage	Storage Closet	8.67	F
3102	\bigcirc	Usable Area	Business Support	Training/Classroom	718.97	G
B102A		Usable Area	Storage	Storage Closet	2.90	н
102B		Usable Area	Storage	Storage Closet	6.34 21.92	1
102C		Usable Area Usable Area	Storage Storage	Storage Closet	11.76	J
1020		Usable Area	Business Support	Storage Closet Training/Classroom	711.03	к
103 103A		Usable Area	Storage	Storage Closet	3.17	(8)
103B		Usable Area	Storage	Storage Closet	4.00	0
103C		Usable Area	Storage	Storage Closet	23.50	N
103D		Usable Area	Storage	Storage Closet	9.33	0
104		Usable Area	Business Support	Conference 18	656.90	P
104A		Usable Area	Storage	Storage Closet	3.17	Q
104B		Usable Area	Storage	Storage Closet	7.08	R
104C		Usable Area	Storage	Storage Closet	23.75	s
3105		Usable Area	Office	Office Double	330.78	-
B106		Usable Area	Office	Office Single	229.17	. ~ *
52(5)				Space ID	J) -	≞ ≜ "ô
TEM	CONTROL	DESCRIPTION				
1	Applications Menu	Click to show the App in Evolve FM. The acti				
2	Page Bar	Use to move between above contains 5 page Occupants. The Space	es, one each	for Properties,		
3	<u>Grid Menu</u>	The Grid Menu is used to manage & report data records in the grid.				
4	Grid	All active data records includes all active spa				
5	Record Count	The total number of data records in the grid.				
		Identifies the Evolve FM attribute data in the grid column.				
6	Column Headers	Identifies the Evolve F				
6 7	Column Headers Quick Search	Use to filter the grid.				
7	Quick Search	Use to filter the grid.				

Grid Menu Controls

From this menu, data can be filtered, and imported or exported from the grid, for easy tabular reporting. Most users will only be able to see/use the Filter, Open, and More Actions buttons (1, 3, and 6).

1 (2 3 4	
—	* 8 0	
ITEM	CONTROL	DESCRIPTION
1	<u>Filters</u>	Click to show the Filters panel. From the Filters panel, you can perform an advanced grid search, and save a user defined grid view.
2	New	Click to create a new data record in the grid.
3	Remove	Click to delete a data record(s) from the grid.
4	Open	Click to open the dialog form of a selected data record.
5	Scan Code	Click to activate your device camera to scan a QR Code and open its related data record. This function is only available with the Evolve FM Scan Code Professional Tool add-on.
6	More Actions	Click to show the More Actions flyout menu. Use the menu to export the grid list, import data records, and to select a grid display option.

Grid Display Options

The Display Options found on the More Actions flyout menu, allow you to change the grid display.

To Change the Grid Display

- 1. Click the More Actions flyout menu, located on the Grid Menu.
- 2. Select a Display Option.

Options include:

- List View. Formatted for smaller screens.
- Grid View. Formatted for larger screens.
- Auto Detect. Displays either List View or Grid View based on the device type used at log in.

IST VIEW				GRID VIEW				
Space Found by Evolution		1 🗆 🤤	•	Space			1	_ ∋ ?
Properties Buildings Floors Space Occupants				Properties Buildings Flo	oors Space Occupants			
₹ 13 8 13 :	Search for	C	20	〒 13 0 13 :		Sea	rch for	۹ 🕲
160 Canal Street		51794 SF	~ ~	† Name	Description	Туре	Total Area	1
Office Space 160 Canal Street				160 Canal Street	Office Space	Building	51,794.00	(A.)
Manchester NH 03101			3.07	8 Harrison Street	Office Space	Building	16,036.00	1.00
8 Harrison Street		16036 SF	(8)	Daniel Webster Highway	Office Space	Building	98,307.00	1
Office Space 8 Hantson Street				Fitness Center	Employee health and fitness center	Building	35,303.00	1.0
Manachester NH 03101				Mechanic Street	Manufacturing	Building	76,336.00	4 a.
Daniel Webster Highway		98307 SF		Union Park	Office Space	Building	45,863.00	1. Car
Office Space Daniel Webster Highway Merimack NH			6	Washington Street	Office Space	Building	57,171.00	

Search & Filter Features

Grid search & filter features allow you to query the Evolve FM database based on search criteria. When data records are found during the query that match the search criteria, the grid filters to show only those records.

Filter Bar

The Active Column Control

The Active Column Control, located at the bottom right of the screen, works together with the Filter Bar. The control's combobox displays the name of the grid column that is currently selected on the grid, and the data in that grid column is queried during a Filter Bar search.

Space ID	1	
ITEM	CONTROL	DESCRIPTION
1	Column List	Select a grid column name to make that column active in the grid.
2	Sort	Click to sort the active column data in ascending/descending order.

The Filter Bar

The Filter Bar, located along the right edge of the grid, is used together with the Active Column control. The letter or number selected on the Filter Bar is used as the search criteria, and the data in the active grid column is queried during the search.

The Filter Bar search will filter the data grid to show only the data records where the first character in the active grid column, matches the letter or number selected on the Filter Bar.

As an example, within Buildings, if Name is the active grid column, and you want to search for Farms, and the letter "F" is selected on the Filter Bar, the search results would include Farm Shop (0319), but would not include any of the Waterman Farm buildings, because those values do not begin with the letter "F".

Filter Bar Controls

CONTROL	DESCRIPTION	ĸ
	Includes letters A-Z, and numbers 1-9. NOTE: The selected character will highlight on the	L
Character List	Filter Bar to show that the grid has a filter applied to its data.	M
~	Click to scroll the Character list up.	
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	N
$\mathbf{\vee}$	Click to scroll the Character list down.	
· ·		0
= Â.	Click to hide/show the Filter Bar.	P
÷		

~

A

в

С

D

Е

F

G

H I

J

Executing a search:

- 1. In the Active Column control, select the grid column to be queried.
- 2. On the Filter Bar, select the letter or number that denotes the first character of your search criteria.

Clearing a search:

1. On the Filter Bar, deselect the letter or number to clear the search.

00

Quick Search

The Quick Search, located in the top right corner of the grid, is used to query the grid data based on the search criteria entered into the Quick Search textbox.

The Quick Search will filter the data grid to show only the data records where data in any grid column, matches the text entered into the Quick Search textbox.

As an example, if "Office" is entered into the Quick Search textbox, the search results would include Staff Office, Administrative Office, or spaces assigned to "Office of the CFO", because all of those values contain the word "Office".

Quick Search Controls

Search	for 1	
ITEM	CONTROL	DESCRIPTION
1	Criteria Textbox	Enter the text to be queried. NOTE: When a search has been executed the Criteria Textbox will highlight to show that the grid has a filter applied to its data.
2	Find	Click to execute the search.
3	Clear	Click to clear the search.

Using the Quick Search

Executing a search:

- 1. In the Quick Search textbox, enter the text to be queried.
- 2. Click Find.

Clearing a search: Click Clear.

Advanced Search

The Advanced Search feature provides the ability to perform a multi-criteria data search. The five Criteria Sets located on the Filters panel, can be used to include five gird columns in a multi-data query.

The Filters Panel

	Space Powered by Evolve Properties Buildings	Floors Sp	(1) Occupants				≗ 🖵 8	2 🔮
(2	Filters	_	₹ *⊐ ©			Search for	C	20
G	Current View:		Space ID	Space Name	† Description		Space Cate	
(3	All Records	~ 🌣	M2-214				Service Area	р
Г	Space ID	*	M2-210				Service Area	Q
			M2-216				Service Area	R
	Space Name		M2-218				Service Area	s
	opace Name		M2-220				Service Area	
			M2-610				Usable Area	
1	Description	*	M2-600				Usable Area	
			M2-598				Service Area	V
	Space Category	*	M2-596				Service Area	w
			M2-592				Service Area	X
	Casara Olasa		M2-594				Service Area	Y
	Space Class		M2-612				Usable Area	z
			M2-614				Usable Area	1
			M2-616				Usable Area	2
		\bigcirc	M2-110				Usable Area	3
	(5)	6	÷					, v ×
	Apply	Clear	1852		Des	cription	- 14	×Â

ITEM	CONTROL	DESCRIPTION
1	Filters	Click to open/close the Filters panel.
2	Close	Click to close the Filters panel.
3	Current View Controls	Use to select & save grid views. NOTE: The Current View control is only available when the grid display is set to Grid View.
4	Criteria Sets	Five grid column selection lists, and their associated search criteria textboxes.
5	Apply	Click to execute the search.
6	Clear	Click to clear the search.

About the Criteria Sets

Each Criteria Set has two controls, a Grid Column Selection List, and its associated Criteria Textbox.

Space ID	* 1	
ITEM	CONTROL	DESCRIPTION
1	Grid Column Selection List	Select the grid column name to be queried.
2	Criteria Textbox	Enter the text to be queried.

The Advanced Search will filter the data grid to show only the data records that match all Criteria Sets used in the search. The image below illustrates a two-column data search (Building column & Space Class column). This search will filter the grid to display only the records in the "160 Canal Street" building that have a Space Class assignment of "Office".

FILTERS PANEL, 2 COLUMN SEARCH



Using the Advanced Search

Executing a search:

- 1. On the Grid Menu, click the Filters icon to open the Filters panel.
- In one of the Criteria Sets, select a grid column to be queried (or use one that is already displayed). You can change the Criteria Sets by clicking the dropdown arrow next to the criteria header and selecting what criteria you want.
- 3. In the Criteria Textbox, enter the text to be queried. The % sign is a wildcard feature if you don't know or have an exact match. I.e. if you want to search for all buildings with an 18th Ave address, you can search the Address criteria for %18th %.
- NOTE! A selection list will be provided after the fourth text character is entered.
 - 4. Repeat steps 2-3 as needed.
 - 5. Click Apply to execute the search.

Clearing a search:

1. Click Clear.

Search Criteria Operators

Search criteria operators can be used to refine your Advanced Search. The operators can be used in the Criteria Textboxes located on the Filters panel.

OPERATOR	DESCRIPTION	CRITERIA DATA TYPE
%	Wildcard	Alphanumeric
>	Greater than	Numeric
<	Less than	Numeric
>=	Greater than or equal to	Numeric
<=	Less than or equal to	Numeric
<>	Not Equal to	Alphanumeric
IS NULL	Field is blank/empty	Alphanumeric
NOT NULL	Field is not blank/empty	Alphanumeric

The example shown in the image below illustrates a four-column data search, executed from the Filters panel, using the wildcard operator (%) and the greater than operator (>).

ADVANCED SEARCH, SEARCH OPERATOR EXAMPLE

Filters				Search for	C	20
urrent View:	Space ID	Building	Floor	Space Sub Class	Available Seats	~
All Records 🗾 文	U8-346A	Union Park	8	Cubicle 6 x 6	1	А
Building 👻	U8-222B	Union Park	8	Cubicle 6 x 6	1	в
Union Park	U8-346J	Union Park	8	Cubicle 6 x 6	1	с
Floor	U8-346F	Union Park	8	Cubicle 6 x 6	1	D
8	U8-222C	Union Park	8	Cubicle 6 x 6	1	Е
,	U8-286A	Union Park	8	Cubicle 8 x 8	1	F
Space Sub Class 🔹	U8-302A	Union Park	8	Cubicle 8 x 8	1	G
Cubicle%	U8-332A	Union Park	8	Cubicle 8 x 8	1	
Available Seats	U8-348E	Union Park	8	Cubicle 8 x 8	1	н
>0	U8-344B	Union Park	8	Cubicle 8 x 8	1	1
	U8-344C	Union Park	8	Cubicle 8 x 8	1	J
Description +	U8-350E	Union Park	8	Cubicle 8 x 8	1	к
	U8-278B	Union Park	8	Cubicle 8 x 8	1	L

NOTE! The Filters panel highlights to show that the grid has a filter applied to its data.

In the image above, the grid has been filtered to show all vacant cubicles, of any size, located on floor 8 of the Union Park building, using the following Advanced Search criteria:

- 1. Building = Union Park
- 2. Floor = 8
- 3. Space Sub Class = Cubicle% (Wildcard: will find Cubicle 6x6, Cubicle 8x8, etc.)
- 4. Available Seats >0 (Greater than zero: will find all spaces that have at least 1 available seat.)

How to Search for Dates

Date fields are shown throughout Evolve FM in the mm/dd/yyyy format. However, the date format in the Evolve FM SQL database is formatted as yyyy/mm/dd, and in some instances, may include the time as part of the data.

Date Format

- Display format: 01/30/2017
- Database format (without time value): 2017/01/30
- Database format (with time value): 2017/01/30 12:00:00AM

Search Format

The Database Format(s) shown in the above list, is what you need to use when searching for dates in Evolve FM (yyyy/mm/dd).

In the instances when the date data includes the time value, you must accommodate for that value in your data query.

Wildcard for Time Value

To accommodate the time data in your query, include the wildcard (%) at the end of your search criteria (unless of course you know the exact time you are searching for).

Date Search Examples

Work Order data is used in the following example.

NOTE! The % (wildcard) operator is added to the date search criteria.

+	All WO's closed on June 30, 2017	2017/06/30 <mark>%</mark>	(wildcard for time)
+	All WO's closed in June 2017	2017/06 <mark>%</mark>	(wildcard for day/time)
+	All WO's closed in 2017	2017 <mark>%</mark>	(wildcard for month/day/time)
+	All June Work Orders, in all years	<mark>%</mark> /06/ <mark>%</mark>	(wildcard for year, and for day/time)

Grid Views

When an application grid is <u>displayed in Grid View</u>, the grid can be reconfigured using the Column Header Controls. Once reconfigured, the new Grid View layout can be saved and reapplied at any time.

Grid Views are created at the user level in Evolve FM, therefore when a user creates a Grid View it can be viewed, edited, or removed by that user only.

Column Header Controls

Column headers identify the Evolve FM attribute data in each of the Grid View columns. They can also be used to sort the column data, resize the column width, and to move column locations to reorganize the Grid View layout.

To Sort a Column

Click a column header to toggle between an ascending and a descending sort order. The sort arrow on the column header indicates the order of the sort.

SPACE CATEGORY SORT, DESCENDING ORDER

Space ID	Space Name	Description	Space Category
----------	------------	-------------	----------------

To Resize a Column

Place your pointer over the vertical edge of the column header until the resize symbol appears, and then drag to resize the grid column width.

RESIZE CURSOR

Space ID Space Name	Description ←	Space Category
---------------------	---------------	----------------

To Move a Column

Click and drag the column header to a new location within the header row. When a column header is moved over a valid placement position, the drop indicator appears to identify the drop position. The image below illustrates the Space Category column being dragged to the left of the Description column.

SPACE CATEGORY COLUMN MOVE

Space ID	Space Name	Description 💌	Space Category
		* 2	
		Space Category	

Show/Hide Columns

The Columns Checklist, located on the Column Header Flyout Menu, is used to show or hide data columns in the Grid View layout.

To Access the Columns Checklist

- 1. On the right edge of any column header, click to show the Column Header Flyout Menu.
- 2. On the flyout menu, click Columns to show the checklist.
- 3. Do either of the following:
 - Deselect a checkbox to hide the column in the Grid View layout.
 - Select a checkbox to show the column in the Grid View layout.

COLUMN MENU

Powered by Evolve	L :
Properties Buildings Floors Space Occupants	5
<u>-</u> *⊐ ⊗ ⊄ ₩ : ↓	~ /
↑ Space ID Description Space Clas	s Space ID Class
B015 Sort Ascendi	ing Space Name
B101 Sort Descen	ding 🗹 Description 18
B101A (2) Columns	Space Category
B101B Storage	Space Class
B101C Storage	Space Sub Class
Sto	3 pset

Grid Views as Tabular Reports

The ability to utilize the Column Header Controls to configure the Grid View layout, is enhanced by the ability to then save that layout as a new Grid View for your tabular reporting needs.

Each Grid View that you create, can be used together with the grid search features for interactive tabular reporting in Evolve FM.

- Display the Grid View, and then filter the data as needed for your reporting or editing needs.
- Export the Grid View to EXCEL to be used as an EXCEL report, or for further analysis.

Creating a Grid View

The controls used to create and manage your user defined Grid Views, are located on the Filters panel.

Current Vie All Reco	ew:	
ITEM	CONTROL	DESCRIPTION
1	1 Current View The Current View selection list.	
2	Manage View	Click to open the Manage View dialog.

About the Current View

The Current View selection list, is used to apply a Grid View layout to the application grid. The list contains the Evolve FM system Grid View(s), and Grid Views created by the user.

The Manage View Dialog

The Manage View dialog is used to create, edit, copy, and remove, user defined Grid Views. It can also be used to define the user's default Grid View, which will automatically display when the grid is displayed.

NOTE! Evolve FM system views cannot be edited or removed.

124 (144)		
Manage View	N: SPACE LIST REPORT	
Remove	2	
Name*	0	
SPACE LIST REPORT		3
Default	4	
(5) Save	Cancel 6	
(5) Save	Cancel 6	
ITEM	CONTROL	DESCRIPTION
1	Name Display	Identifies the Grid View open for editing.
2	Remove	Click to delete the Grid View.
3	Name	REQUIRED. The name of the Grid View.
4	Default	Sets the Grid View as the user's default Grid View. The default Grid View will automatically display when the application grid is displayed.
5	Save	Click to save data changes & close the dialog.
6	Cancel	Click to cancel data changes & close the dialog.

Managing your Grid Views

Grid Views are created and saved at the user level in Evolve FM, therefore when a user creates a Grid View it can be viewed, edited, or removed by that user only.

To Add a Grid View:

- 1. Configure the grid layout by doing any of the following:
 - Move/resize grid columns.
 - Hide/show grid columns.
 - Sort data in grid columns.
- 2. On the Grid Menu, click the Filters icon to open the Filters panel.
- 3. Click the Manage View icon to open the Manage View dialog.
- 4. Enter the name of the new Grid View.
- 5. Click Save.

To set a Default Grid View:

- 1. Do one of the following:
 - Add a new Grid View.

- Choose a view from the Current View selection list, and then open the Manage View dialog.
- 2. Select the Default checkbox on the Manage View dialog.
- 3. Click Save.

To Remove a grid view:

- 1. In the Current View selection list, select the view that you want to remove.
- 2. Open the Manage View dialog.
- 3. Click Remove on the Manage View dialog.
- 4. Click Save.

To Copy or Rename a grid view:

Renaming an existing view essentially creates a copy of that view. If you do not want to keep the original version of the grid view, you will need to remove it from the Current View list.

- 1. In the Current View selection list, select the view that you want to rename or copy.
- 2. Open the Manage View dialog.
- 3. Edit the name of the Grid View.
- 4. Click Save.
- 5. Optional: Remove the original version of the Grid View from the Current View list.

Export Data

When the grid display is set to Grid View, the data in the grid can be exported to EXCEL.

To Export Data to EXCEL

The More Actions flyout menu located on the Grid Menu contains the Export List function.

The grid display must be set to Grid View.

- 1. Click the More Actions flyout menu, located on the Grid Menu.
- 2. Click Export List.

EXPORTED GRID VIEW DATA

1	А	В	С	D	E	F	G	Н
1	RecordID 💌	Space Class (114) 💌	Space Sub Class (102) 🔽	Building (55)	🕶 Floor (56) 💌	Space ID (239) 💌	Area (107) 💌	Available Seats (132) 💌
2	902	Workstation	Cubicle Standard	160 Canal Street	2	C2-840	96	1
3	914	Workstation	Cubicle Small	160 Canal Street	2	C2-808	64	1
4	934	Workstation	Cubicle Small	160 Canal Street	2	C2-916	64	1
5	937	Workstation	Cubicle Small	160 Canal Street	2	C2-910	64	1
6	945	Workstation	Cubicle Standard	160 Canal Street	2	C2-772	92	1
7	977	Workstation	Cubicle Double	160 Canal Street	2	C2-608	146.35	1
8	1042	Workstation	Cubicle Small	160 Canal Street	3	C3-912	64	1
9	1062	Workstation	Cubicle Small	160 Canal Street	3	C2 814	64.1	1
and the second	H			160 Canals			96	1

NOTE!

About the Exported Data

Record ID

The data exported to EXCEL includes the Evolve FM data Record ID in column A. The Record ID in this column, identifies the unique identifier Evolve FM assigned to each data record in the SQL database at the time the data record was created. While the Record ID is unique to each record, it is not created by OSU. The Building Number and Space ID will remain as the unique ID for any OSU building or space.

Column Header

Each column header includes the Evolve FM data attribute name, and in parenthesis, its associated attribute ID. The attribute ID is the unique ID, assigned to each data attribute, in the Evolve FM SQL database.



An EXCEL search & replace on the column header row, using the EXCEL wildcard * (asterisk), will quickly remove the opening & closing parenthesis and the data between them.

- 1. In EXCEL, select the column header row.
- 2. Use the EXCEL Find & Replace tool to find (*) and replace it with a blank value. Include a space before the opening parenthesis " (" in the search to eliminate a trailing space at the end of the column header text.

Chapter 1.3: Drawing Viewer

The Drawing Viewer Interface

The Evolve FM Drawing Viewer is used to display drawings, and to manage data related to them.

To Display the Drawing Viewer

1. On the Applications Menu, click Drawings.

			🛓 🗔 🖸 🚱
9 13 0	0 0 0 0 0 2		B O V E C
SSFM Internation SSFM Internation	G Mag Center at Floor Plane pois Downt hang horing horing		Name 6 December 22.933 3 Compared Promotion 4 Promotion 4 Promotion 7 Number 1
Union Paris 8 - Fix Trian Paris 8 - Fix T Space ID U6-110	er orr Flan I III III Space Hams Cast Center S	Search to Search to Search to Persongli Service Finit Ad	C Planset N., Area Planset N., Area 1 M A2 0 114 66 (* 1
U8-112 U8-116	4	ervice Ania Primary Circulation Air Lock ervice Ania UMMy Electrical Closed	0 30.99 () 0 146.70 () . ~ 3
10100	141		15 ST2500 IV
U8-115 + (1	141		0 146.70 · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
08-116 + 0 142	Fear Common Area (FCA) 8	ervice Area UMy Electrical Coael	0 146.70 · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
UB-119 1-12 1-12 1-12 1-12 1-12	CONTROL	evec Ans UNIY Exclusion Closed	specific and the viewer:
ITEM	CONTROL Viewer	Description The drawing display area. Contains four function panes that are used with	the Viewer: d Manage Links.

The Four Main Components

The Viewer

Using the hide/show panel controls, the Drawing Navigator panel (1), Options panel (2), and the Drawing Grids (3), can be hidden to maximize the Viewer area.

MAXIMIZED VIEWER



Viewer Menu

(1)	2	3	4	5
6		k	۲	21

*the Maintenance Menu is not available to use in SIMS

The functions available with each of the five menu icons are described below.

1: FILE OPTIONS MENU		
Edit Attributes	Click to open the <u>Drawing record dialog</u> related to the drawing in the Viewer.	
Open DWF	Download and/or open the DWF file related to the drawing in the Viewer. The Autodesk DWF viewer is required to open the file (a free download is available at Autodesk.com).	
Print Drawing	This option will print the entire drawing image.	
Print View	This option will print the drawing area visible in the Viewer. TIP: Do not use this option to print the entire drawing image, instead use the Print Drawing option.	
Get Image	This option will produce an image file of the drawing area visible in the Viewer. Right-click on the image file and choose Copy Image, to copy the image to the clipboard. Paste into any document or email.	
Reports	Opens the Select Report dialog. Select one of your drawing report formats, and then click Preview to produce the report.	
2: WORKSPACE MENU	•	
Hide/Show Drawing Navigator	Click to Hide/Show the Drawing Navigator Panel.	
Hide/Show Drawing Options	Click to Hide/Show the Drawing Options Panel.	
Hide/Show Drawing Grids	Click to Hide/Show the Drawing Grids Panel.	
3: DRAWING TOOL MENU TIP: A right-click in the Viewer will also show these tools		

1.3 Drawing Viewer

Select	Sets the cursor to Select mode, enabling selection of drawing objects.
Pan	Sets the cursor to Pan mode, used to move the drawing image in the Viewer.
Zoom Window	Zooms to an area, defined by a rectangular selection window, in the Viewer.
Zoom In	Enlarges the image size displayed in the Viewer.
Zoom Out	Decreases the image size displayed in the Viewer.
Zoom All	Displays the entire drawing image within the Viewer.
Auto-Zoom	Automatically zooms to an object selected on the drawing.
4: LABEL MENU	
Labels On	Shows object labels on the drawing.
Labels Off	Hides object labels on the drawing.
Edit Labels	Enables the ability to edit the location and size of a label on the drawing.
Reset Label	Resets an object label(s) back to its original size and location.
Manage Labels	Opens the Manage Labels dialog, which is used to create & edit label styles.
5: MAINTENANCE MENU NOT	E: Requires the Operations & Maintenance Module
Service Request	Use to submit a work request.
Work Order	Opens the Work Order dialog, used to create a work order.
Move In	Use to submit a Move In request.
Move Out	Use to submit a Move Out request
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·

The Drawing Navigator Panel

The Drawing Navigator panel, located on the left side of the Viewer, includes four function panes that are used with the Viewer.

- Drawing Navigator Pane
- Moves Pane
- Search Drawings Pane
- Manage Links Pane

Drawing Navigator Menu

The Drawing Navigator menu, is used to show each function pane of the Drawing Navigator panel.

1 (2 9 t	3 (4) 3 (4) 1 (2) (2) *the N	Noves and Manage Links buttons are not available in SIMS
ITEM	CONTROL	DESCRIPTION
1	Drawing Navigator	Shows the Drawing Navigator pane.
2	Moves	Shows the Moves pane.
3	Search Drawings	Shows the Search Drawings pane.
4	Manage Links	Shows the Manage Links pane.
esources	1	Space & Asset Management

(Click to return to the Table of Contents)

The Drawing Navigator Pane



•

The leading pane of the Drawing Navigator panel, is its namesake, the Drawing Navigator pane.

The Drawing Navigator pane is a location tree list that is used to navigate to your drawings in Evolve FM.

Data related to the location selected in the tree list, will populate the Options panel, the Drawing Grid panel, and if the selection is a drawing file, the drawing graphics will display in the Viewer.

Drawing Navigator Controls

Use the H expand control to expand locations in the list, and collapse control to hide locations in the list. the

• Select a location in the tree list to see its related data in the Options panel, the Drawing Grids panel, and to display a drawing file in the Viewer.

Drawing files are identified by the Evolve drawing symbol A.

The Search Drawings Pane

Search for : Occupants 1 Matching: Smith 2 Aida R Smith 3 Matching: Smith 2 Aida R Smith 3 Matching: Smith 2 Adda R Smith 3 Matching: Smith 2 Adda R Smith 4 Matching: Smith 2 Adda R Smith 4 Matching: Title: Administration Assistant II Cost Center: Fitness Administration Property: Corporate HQ Building: Fitness Center Fitoo: 1 Space: F1.164 Matching: Yashington Street Fitor: 2 Space: W2-320E Matching: Washington Street Fitor: 2 Space: W2-320E Matching: Space: Space	Fitness Center: 1 - Floor Plan	
Occupants 1 *Matching: smith 2 3 4 *Matching: 3 4 3 4 *Matching: 3 4 5 4 *Matching: 3 4 5 5 *Matching: 3 4 5 5 *Matching: 3 4 5 5 *Matching: Administration Assistant II 6 6 Property: Corporate HQ 4 6 Space: F1-164 6 7 7 * Anthony T Smith 7 7 7 Title: Help Desk Specialist 6 7 Cost Center: Support 7 7 Property: Corporate HQ 8 8 Building: Washington Street 7 7 Floor: 2 2 2 2 Space: W2-320E 7 7 7	9 ti Q 8	
smith 2 3 4 Aida R Smith 3 3 4 Title: Administration Assistant II 6 6 Cost Center: Fitness Center 4 6 Building: Fitness Center 4 6 Space: F1-164 4 7 Mathemy T Smith 7 7 7 Title: Help Desk Specialist 7 7 Title: Help Desk Specialist 7 7 Property: Corporate HQ 8 8 Building: Washington Street 7 7 Floor: 2 2 2 2	\cap	•
Title: Administration Assistant II Cost Center: Fitness Administration Property: Corporate HQ Building: Fitness Center Floor: 1 Space: F1-164 Itle: Help Desk Specialist Cost Center: Support Property: Corporate HQ Building: Washington Street Floor: 2 Space: W2-320E	\sim	30
Cost Center: Fitness Administration Property: Corporate HQ Building: Fitness Center Floor: 1 Space: F1-164 Mathematical Space F1-164 Mathematical Spac		ß
Title: Help Desk Specialist Cost Center: Support Property: Corporate HQ Building: Washington Street Floor: 2 Space: W2-320E	Cost Center: Fitness Administration Property: Corporate HQ Building: Fitness Center Floor: 1	4
Building: Washington Street Floor: 2 Space: W2-320E	Title: Help Desk Specialist	ß
Brandon H Smith	Building: Washington Street Floor: 2	
& (5)	Brandon H Smith	C.
	& (5)	

The Search Drawings pane can be used to search for drawings, spaces on a drawing, and occupants and assets that are assigned to spaces on a drawing.

ITEM	CONTROL	DESCRIPTION
1	Search Scope	Defines what data records to find; Drawings, Spaces, Occupants, or Assets.
2	Search Criteria	Defines what data to find.
3	Find	Executes the search.
4	Search Results	Shows all data records found in the search.
5	Clear	Clears the search.

The Drawing Options Panel

The Drawing Options panel, located on the right side of the Viewer, contains five function panes that are used with the Viewer.

- Attributes Pane
- Layers Pane
- Objects Pane
- Themes Pane
- Plan Views Pane

The Options menu is used to show each pane on the panel.

Drawing Options Menu



*Most OSU SIMS users will not have the Objects or Plan Views buttons

ITEM	CONTROL	DESCRIPTION
1	Attributes	Shows the Attributes pane.
2	Layers	Shows the Layers pane.
3	Objects	Shows the Objects pane.
4	Themes	Shows the Themes pane.
5	Plan Views	Shows the Plan Views pane.

The Attributes Pane

	≟ 🖵 ∋ 📀
	Space
Picture:	
Space ID:	U8-210
Space Name:	
Description:	VP of Finance Office
Area:	302.21
Classification —	
Space Category:	Usable Area
Space Class:	Office
Space Sub Class:	Office Executive Sr
Occupancy	
Planned Headcount:	1.00
Headcount:	1.00
Available Seats:	0.00
Occupants: 1	George N Boateng
Allocation: 2	Finance (505) 100%
₫3	
<u> </u>	

The Attributes pane shows data related to an item selected in either the Drawing Navigator tree list, in the Drawing Grids, or in the Viewer.

The data attribute fields on the pane are read-only, other than the Occupants and Attributes hyperlinks, which can be used to open their respective dialogs.

ITEM	CONTROL	DESCRIPTION
1	Occupants	The occupant hyperlink, opens the Space Occupant dialog when clicked.
2	Allocation	The allocation hyperlink, opens the Allocation dialog when clicked. This link can be used to change the allocation percentage assigned to a selected object.
3	Open Record	Opens the data record of a selected object.

The Layers Pane



The Layers pane contains a list of drawing layers related to the drawing displayed in the Viewer. Use these controls to show or hide layers in the Viewer.

ITEM	CONTROL	DESCRIPTION
1	Layer	Drawing layer name.
2	Load/Unload	Click to turn a layer On/Off in the Viewer. Light = ON, Dark = OFF
3	Isolate Layer	Click to isolate a layer (turns off all layers but that layer). Click again to unisolate that layer.
4	Load All	Click to show all layers in the Viewer.
5	Unload All	Click to hide all layers in the Viewer.
6	Reset	Click to reset the layer settings to the drawing's default layer state, as set on the <u>Drawing record</u> <u>dialog</u> .

The Themes Pane



The Themes pane is used to color spaces displayed in the Viewer, based on space criteria data defined in a theme. When a theme is applied to a drawing, the Themes pane populates with a legend key.

ITEM	CONTROL	DESCRIPTION
1	Theme List	A selection list of themes that can be applied to spaces on a drawing.
2	Legend Key	The legend key for the selected theme shows: - Color/Hatch highlighted on the drawing. - Attribute data related to the color/hatch.
3	Clear Theme	Clears the colors from the drawing.
4	Manage Themes	Opens the Manage Themes dialog, which is used to create user defined themes.
5	Count	Select to show the record count related to each key item in the legend.
6	Total Area	Select to show the total area related to each key item in the legend.

The Drawing Grids

Drawing Grids show the data records related to the item selected on the <u>Drawing Navigator pane</u>. Use the grid search controls to filter data, and when the grid is displayed in Grid View, you can utilize the Grid View controls to layout the grid columns, and to create and save user defined grid views.

Data Scope

The grid will populate with Space, Occupant, or Assets records, based on the grid's selected data scope.

DRAWING GRID, DATA SCOPE ICONS

								-
Union Park: 8	8 - Floor Plan							
= =	🛎 📖 🖻 🗄				Search for			20
+ s(1)	2 3 e Name	Cost Center		Space Category	Space Class	Space Sub Class	Description	~
U8-110	\sim	Floor Commo	Floor Common Area (FCA) Usabl		Personnel Service	First Aid		
U8-112		Floor Commo	n Area (FCA)	Service Area	Primary Circulation	Air Lock		
U8-116		Floor Commo	n Area (FCA)	Service Area	Utility	Electrical Closet		
U8-118		Floor Commo	n Area (FCA)	Service Area	Utility	Mechanical Room		8
U8-122		Floor Commo	n Area (FCA)	Service Area	Utility	Janitor Closet		~
36						Space ID	~	14 %
ITEM	CONTROL		DESCRIPTI	ON				
1	Spaces		•	the grid with Space elected on the Dra	,	e linked to Drawin ane.	g records, re	lated to
2	Occupants		•	0	•	It are assigned to I rawing Navigator		g space
3	Assets		•	0	,	e assigned to linke rawing Navigator	0	set

Resize the Grid

You can resize the Drawing Grid by dragging its upper edge.

E Drawings								2	□ ∋ 0
9 ti Q	Ø	8 E h 4 .	21					8 🔳	8
E SSFM Internati	٥	1				स्ट्रस्ट स्ट्रि	Picture C ²	Space	3 auril
Union Park: 8 - Fic	oor Plan								
〒 闘 谷					Search for				۵.۵
† Space ID	Space Name	Cost Center	Space Category	Space Class	Space Sub Class	Description	Planned H	Area	11
U8-110		Floor Common Area (FCA)	Usable Area	Personnel Service	First Aid		0	114.68	(*
U8-112		Floor Common Area (FCA)	Service Area	Primary Circulation	Air Lock		0	39.99	C =
U8-116		Floor Common Area (FCA)	Service Area	Utility	Electrical Closet		0	146.70	1 x
U8-118		Floor Common Area (FCA)	Service Area	Utility	Mechanical Room		0	146.70	1 m
U8-122		Floor Common Area (FCA)	Service Area	Utility	Janitor Closet		0	104.51	۰.
U8-126		Floor Common Area (FCA)	Service Area	Restroom	Restroom Men		0	235.96	٤.,
U8-128		Floor Common Area (FCA)	Service Area	Restroom	Restroom Women		0	308.12	¢ _
U8-130		Floor Common Area (FCA)	Usable Area	Storage	Storage Room		0	123.63	1
U8-132		Floor Common Area (FCA)	Usable Area	Storage	Storage Room		0	119.42	6
U8-134		Floor Common Area (FCA)	Service Area	Utility	IDF Room		0	96.98	t.
U8-144		Building Common Area (BCA)	Service Area	Utility	Mechanical Room		0	201.31	(¹
U8-210		Finance (505)	Usable Area	Office	Office Executive Sr	VP of Finance Office	1	302.21	e *
U8-214	Back Bay	Finance (505)	Usable Area	Business Support	Conference 8		0	339.04	(L
U8-218		Finance (505)	Usable Area	Office	Office Executive Sr		1	308.28	(=)
U8-222A		Finance (505)	Usable Area	Workstation	Cubicle 6 x 6		41	39.59	t a
U8-222B		Unassigned Cost Center (999)	Usable Area	Workstation	Cubicle 6 x 6		1	39.59	
1								10	. ~
36							Space ID		· 14 18

Drawings Unon Part. 8 - Roor Part							-	2 🖵 🕀
9 13 04 8	6 E h 9	2r	G)				8 🛛 8
SSFM International					BBBB			Space
Corporate HQ							Space ID	U8-246
En Campus Map		Land Proventie		[2] 2] [2] [2] [রম প্র		Space Name	
hand the state of the state of the		전 표	2 100 RILS					(5)
+ fitness Center		비 수송 년 - 마틴	S of the second				Description:	\cup
🖶 🌆 Union Park		E TELE		ार <u>े</u> ब्भ म े	8,3		Area:	269.42
# 📾 8		9 번에 12			83		Classification	
En Floor Plan	(1)	2 mg 512 1	I Noro				Space Category	Usable Area
+ 69 9	\smile				183 J		Space Class	Office
Washington Street		日本 日	수수 수수	<u> </u>			Space Sub Class	Office Executive
			전전 전전	KR BL BK	1 A L		Occupancy	
DC Manufacturing			1211 1211	거난 프로 패치			Planned Headcount	1.00
Harmon Technologies			ol on R man	········			Headcount	1.00
Manchester NH		1 000 P 00	~ 말 말 다 다	RTTT 83 83 83	8구구구.		\sim	
Merrimack NH		Internet	suchase succession, produced, protocold, Rossing	Challenge Stream (Stream Channel Science Stream	Contraction of Contraction			
inion Park: 8 - Floor Plan								
	\sim							
	C			Search for				Q
/	Email	Title	Category	Occupancy Type	Space ID	Ť		
lame					U8-218	1		
ame my L Craft	CraftAL@ssfm.com	Administrative Director	Full Time					
ame my L Craft laureen E High	High/NE@sstm.com	HR Manager	Full Time		U8-242	1		
ame my L Craft aureen E High my C Hesselton	High//E@ssfm.com 3 HessettonAC@ssfm.com	HR Manager HR Director	Full Time Full Time		U8-246	1		
Name Arny L Craft Maureen E High	High/NE@sstm.com	HR Manager	Full Time			1 1 1		

How to Use the Drawing Grids

- 1. Select an item on the Drawing Navigator pane.
- 2. Select a data scope (Spaces or Occupants) on the grid menu bar.
- 3. Select a record in the grid list.
- 4. When a drawing is displayed in the Viewer, the selected record will highlight on the drawing.
- 5. Data related to the selected record will show on the Attributes pane.
- 6. Click the Open record control on the Drawing Grid, to open the selected record's dialog. Use this dialog to edit data related to the selected record.
- NOTE! A double-click on the selected record will also open the record's dialog.
 - 7. Clicking the Open record control on the Attributes pane, with multiple records selected in the grid, will open the Multi-Edit dialog. Use this dialog to bulk edit the selected records.
How to Use Search Drawings

SEARCH DRAWINGS

			≗ ⊑ ∋ ?
0 u Q & 5	6 I k 🗣 🖬 🗅		C 2 1 8
Bach for Occurants Decomposition Simple Simple Simple Concurants Simple Simpl		Space ID Space Name Decorption Area Area Area Area Area Area Area Area	Space U9-359C 69.96 Usable Area Workstation Cubicle 9 x 8
Q (6)		ď	

- 1. On the Drawing Navigator panel, click Search Drawings to display the Search Drawings pane.
- 2. In the Search for selection list, select the data set for your search.
- 3. In the Matching textbox, enter the text to be queried.



A selection list may be provided after the fourth character is entered. Make a selection from this list if you are searching for a specific object.

- 4. Click Find.
- 5. In the search results list, do either of the following:
 - Click the Open Drawing hyperlink to load the related drawing in the Viewer, and highlight the object on the drawing. The Attributes pane will show data related to the object selected on the drawing.
 - Click the Open record control to open the object's data record dialog.
- 6. Click the Clear Search Results control to clear the search.

Chapter 1.4: Drawing Labels

About Drawing Labels

Drawing labels are used to display text related to the objects on a drawing.

Label Controls



The Label controls located on the Viewer menu, are used to work with your drawing labels. Some of the controls when applied, affect all users at a global level, while other controls affect only the current user logged in at the time of their use.

CONTROL	LEVEL	DESCRIPTION
Q Labels On	User	Shows object labels on the drawing.
Labels Off	User	Hides object labels on the drawing.
Edit Labels	Global	Enables the ability to edit the location & size of a label on the drawing.
CReset Label	Global	Resets a label(s) on the drawing to its original size and location.
So Manage Labels	User	Opens the Manage Labels dialog, used to create & edit label styles.

Label Style, Permissions, & Scale Factor

Label styles, label permissions, and label scale factors, all have a role in how labels are displayed on a drawing in Evolve FM.

Label Styles

Label styles control the look, the font, and the attribute data displayed when labels are turned on in the Viewer. System Label styles are provided as the Evolve FM default label styles; however, you may also create user defined label styles in Evolve FM.

System Label Styles

Space and asset objects are the most common objects found on a drawing, but drawings may also include property, building, and floor objects. For each object type, Evolve FM provides a system label style.

OBJECT TYPE	SYSTEM DEFAULT LABEL STYLE NAME	
Property	Default Property	
Building	Default Building	
Floor	Default Floor	
Space	Default Space	
Asset	Default Asset	

The system label styles are available for use by all users, but they cannot be edited or removed.

39

User Defined Label Styles

User defined label styles are created and saved at the user level in Evolve FM, therefore when a user creates a label style it can be viewed, edited, or removed by that user only. The Label Styles tab, located on the Manage Labels dialog is used to create and save user defined label styles.

Label Availability

By default, system label styles are enabled and useable by all users, and user defined label styles are enabled and usable only to the user that created them. The controls located in Platform Administration > Drawings > Labels, allow some adjustment to that level of access, as outlined in the table below.

ACCESS LEVEL	DESCRIPTION
Public Label	Gives use of a label style to all users.
Private Label	Gives use of a label style only to the user who created it.
Enabled	Makes the label style available for use based on its Public/Private state.
Disabled	Makes the label style unavailable for use regardless of its Public/Private state.

Label Scale Factor

There are times when a label style looks great when displayed on most drawings, but it appears too small or too large on a specific drawing. A label scale factor can be set on the <u>Drawing record dialog</u> to adjust for this situation.

Evolve FM will scale the label font size, set in all label styles displayed on that drawing, by the value set on the Drawing record dialog.

Example

- A label scale of 2 will show label text 2x the font size set in a label style.
- A label scale of .5 will show label text 1/2 the font size set in a label style.

To Change a Drawing Record's Label Scale

- 1. Display the drawing in the Viewer.
- 2. On the Viewer menu, click File Options, and then click Edit Attributes.
- 3. On the Attributes tab of the Drawing record dialog, in the Label textbox, enter the new scale.

The Manage Labels Dialog

The Manage Labels dialog is used to set your Drawing Viewer default label styles, and to add, edit, and remove your user defined label styles.

Defaults Tab

The five object selection lists (Property, Building, Floor, Space, Asset), located on the Defaults tab, are used to set a default label style for each object type. The label styles selected here define the text label appearance that will be used in the Drawing viewer.

1.4 Drawing Labels

• NOTE! Default label styles are set at the user level in Evolve FM, therefore the default label styles a user selects here, controls the text label appearance in the Drawing Viewer for that user only.

The Evolve FM systems label styles are preconfigured on the Details tab, and user defined label styles are available for selection in the object selection lists, based on their label availability setting configured in Platform Administration > Drawings > Labels.

Manage Labels		8 8
Defaults	Label Styles	
Property*		A
Default F	roperty	•
Building*		
Default E	uilding	•
Floor*		
Default F	loor	-
Space*		
Default S	pace	-
Asset*		
Default A	sset	
	Close	

Label Styles Tab

The Label Styles tab, on the Manage Labels dialog, is used to create your user defined label styles.

The dialog is split into two groups, the Labels group, which is used to manage your label styles, and the Lines group, which is used to configure the lines of text related to each of your label styles.

MANAGE LABELS DIALOG, LABEL STYLES TAB

Manage Labels		S S		
Defaults	s Label Styles			
Label	s 1 Li	nes 5		
Spa	ace ID	Space ID		
Spa	aceID-Occupant	Occupants		
0.000				
*				
(2)	(3) (4) (5 (7) (8)		
		Close		
ITEM	CONTROL	DESCRIPTION		
1	Labels Group	A list of your user defined label styles, and the Labels group menu controls (2-4).		
2	Add (style)	Click to add a new label style.		
3 Remove (style)		Click to remove the selected label style.		
4	Edit (style)	Click to edit the selected label style.		
5	Lines Group	The lines of text in a selected style, and the Lines group menu controls (6-8).		
6	Add (text line)	Add a new line of text to the selected label style.		
7	Remove (text line)	Remove the selected line of text.		
8	Edit (text line)	Edit the selected line of text.		

Working with Drawing Labels

Turn Labels On/Off

To Show Labels on a Drawing

- 1. On the Viewer Menu, click Labels.
- 2. Click Labels On.

To Hide Labels on a Drawing

- 1. On the Viewer Menu, click Labels.
- 2. Click Labels Off.

Move & Resize Labels

The Edit Labels control is used to move a label on a drawing from its current location to a new location, and to resize the label to better fit its current location.

To Move a Label

- 1. On the Viewer Menu, click Labels.
- 2. Click Edit Labels.
- 3. Select the label on the drawing.
- 4. With your pointer inside the label's bounding box, drag the label to its new location.



To Resize a Label

- 1. On the Viewer Menu, click Labels.
- 2. Click Edit Labels.
- 3. Select the label on the drawing.
- 4. Select a bounding box grip, drag to increase or decrease the size of the label.



Reset a Label Location

The Reset Label control is designed to reset a label, related to one selected drawing object, back to the object's original location, and to resize the label to its size set in the active label style in use in the Viewer.

To Reset a Label

- 1. In the Viewer, select the space(s), or another object(s), that needs its label reset.
- 2. On the Viewer Menu, click Labels.
- 3. Click Reset Label.

Set Your Default Label Styles

1. On the Viewer menu, click Labels, and then click Manage Labels.

- 2. On the Defaults tab of the Manage Labels dialog, select a default label style for each object type (Property, Building, Floor, Space, Asset).
- 3. Click Close.

NOTE! The default label styles set here, are specific to the user login that set them.

Create a New Label Style

- 1. On the Viewer Menu, click Labels, and then click Manage Labels.
- 2. Click the Label Styles tab.
- 3. On the Labels menu, click Add.

Define the label type and name:

- 4. Select the type of object that will display this label (Space, Asset, etc.).
- 5. Enter the name to be used for this label style.
- 6. Click Save.

Build each line of text in the label:

- 7. In the Labels group, select the label style just created.
- 8. On the Lines menu, click Add.
- 9. In the Attribute selection list, select the data attribute to be used in this line of text. Example: Space ID will add the Space ID text to each label.
- 10. Optional:
- Prefix: Text entered here will be used to prefix the Attribute text on the label.
- Suffix: Text entered here will be used to suffix the Attribute text on the label.
- 11. In the Font selection list, select a text font for this line of text.
- 12. In the Sort order textbox, enter the line position of this text. Example: 1 = First line of text, 2 = Second line of text, etc.

NOTE! text,

If more than one line of text is used in a label style, and the sort order is not defined for each line of the label display on the drawing will produce random line order results.

- 13. In the Size textbox, enter the font size to be used on this line of text.
- 14. In the Color selection list, select a color to be used on this line of text.
- 15. Optional: In the Zoom textbox, enter a zoom display factor for this line of text.
- NOTE! A zoom factor of 0 (zero) will make the line of text visible at all times when displayed on a drawing,

whereas a zoom factor of 90 will require the user to zoom closer into a drawing area before the line of text will be visible.

16. Click Save.

CAFM Resources

17. Repeat steps 8-16 to add another line of text to the label style.

Edit/Delete a Label Style

- 1. On the Viewer Menu, click Labels, and then click Manage Labels.
- 2. Click the Label Styles tab.
- 3. In the Labels group, select the label style to be edited.
- 4. On the Labels menu, click Edit.
- 5. Change the label Type or Name as needed.
- 6. Click Save.

Delete a Label Style

- 1. In the Labels group, select the label style to be deleted.
- 2. On the Labels menu, click Remove.

Edit the Lines of Text in a Label Style

- 1. In the Labels group, select the label style to be edited.
- 2. In the Lines list, select the line of text to be edited.
- 3. On the Lines menu, click Edit.
- 4. Edit the format data for the text line as needed.
- 5. Click Save.

Delete a Line of Text in a Label Style

- 1. In the Labels group, select the label style to be edited.
- 2. In the Lines list, select the line of text to be removed.
- 3. On the Lines menu, click Remove.

Chapter 1.5: Drawing Themes

About Drawing Themes

Drawing themes are used to color-code spaces on a drawing based on search criteria defined in a stored theme. The <u>Themes pane</u>, located on the Drawing Options panel of the Drawing Viewer, is used to apply themes to drawings in the Viewer, and to create and manage user defined drawing themes.

Theme Attributes

The Evolve FM Space data attributes are used in drawing themes, allowing a user to highlight spaces on a drawing based on the space related data assigned to the Evolve FM space records.

Theme Type

System Themes

There is a preconfigured system theme in Evolve FM for all Space data attributes. The system themes are available for use by all users, but they cannot be edited or removed. System themes can be identified by the system theme icon.

ICON	N THEME TYPE	
¥	System Theme.	

User Defined Themes

User defined themes are created and saved at the user level in Evolve FM, and can remain private to the user who created them, or they can be made public so that all users have access to them.

Private Themes

By default, all user defined themes are private to that user only, meaning they can be viewed, edited, or removed by that user only. User defined private themes can be identified by the private theme icon.

ICON	ТНЕМЕ ТҮРЕ	
1	User defined, PRIVATE theme.	
Dublic Th	Public Thomas	

Public Themes

User defined public themes can be viewed by all users, but can be edited or removed only by the user that created them. User defined public themes can be identified by the public theme icon.

ICON	ТНЕМЕ ТҮРЕ	
10	User defined, PUBLIC theme.	

Theme Scale Factor

There are times when theme hatch patterns look great when displayed on most drawings, but they appear too small or too large on a specific drawing. A theme scale factor can be set on the <u>Drawing record dialog</u> to adjust for this situation.

1.5 Drawing Themes

Evolve FM will scale the theme hatch size, in all themes displayed on that drawing, by the value set on the Drawing record dialog.

Example

- A theme scale of 2 will show theme hatch 2x the default size.
- A theme scale of .5 will theme hatch 1/2 the default size.

To Change a Drawing Record's Theme Scale

- 1. Display the drawing in the Viewer.
- 2. On the Viewer menu, click File Options, and then click Edit Attributes.
- 3. On the Attributes tab of the Drawing record dialog, in the Theme textbox, enter the new scale.

User Defined Themes

User defined themes are created and managed at the user level in Evolve FM. They can be viewed, edited, and removed by that user only, however the controls located in Platform Administration > Drawings > Themes, can be set to make user defined themes available for use by all users.

The Manage Themes Dialog

The Manage Themes dialog is used to create user defined themes in Evolve FM. The dialog is accessed using the Manage Themes control, located on the <u>Themes pane</u>.

All drawing themes created by the user are listed in the Manage Themes grid list. The grid menu controls are used to add, edit, and remove, a user's drawing themes.

Search	for		Q	. 🛞
Description	Туре			~
ıs	Space	1	3	A
Copy and print areas	Space	C	9	в
	Space			c
	Space			D
Vacant spaces	Space			E
				~
Name		-	≞♠	₹
	Description Is Copy and print areas Vacant spaces	IS Space Copy and print areas Space Space Space Vacant spaces Space	Description Type is Space Copy and print areas Space Space Space Vacant spaces Space	DescriptionTypeisSpaceCopy and print areasSpaceSpaceSpaceVacant spacesSpace

MANAGE THEMES DIALOG

1.5 Drawing Themes

ITEM	CONTROL	DESCRIPTION
1	Theme Grid	A list of drawing themes created by the user.
2	Add	Click to add a new theme.
3	Remove	Click to remove a selected theme.
4	Open	Click to open the Legend Builder dialog for a selected theme.
5	Edit Name	Click to edit the Name or Description of a selected theme.

Legend Builder Dialog

The Legend Builder dialog is used to configure the legend key, and the related search criteria, to be used in a drawing theme.

The dialog is split into two groups, the Legend Items group, which is used to manage the legend key items displayed in the drawing theme legend, and the Detail group, which is used to configure the search criteria for each legend key item.

MANAGE THEMES, THEME BUILDER DIALOG



7	Remove (detail)	Remove a selected search criteria statement.
8	Edit (detail)	Edit a selected search criteria statement.

About Search Criteria Statements

The image below illustrates a two-line search criteria statement configured in the Detail group.

Legend Items	Detail
Vacant	Planned Headcount > 0 AND
	Available Seats > 0 AND

When the search is executed, Evolve FM will process the search criteria one line at a time, first to last, to qualify data that meets the criteria set in the statement.

	· · · ·
CONTROL	NOTE
Space Data Attribute	The space data attribute to be used in the search.
Operator	The operator to be assigned to the Value of the attribute.
Value	The attribute's data value to be used in the search.
Connector	A relational operator (AND or OR) to connect each line of the search criteria statement. - The AND operator displays a record if all the conditions separated by AND is TRUE. - The OR operator displays a record in any of the conditions separated by OR is TRUE.

Each line of a search criteria statement is comprised of the following items:

About Relational Operators

Search criteria relational operators are used to link the space data Attribute to the Value.

OPERATOR	DESCRIPTION	CRITERIA DATA TYPE
<	Less than	Numeric
<=	Less than or equal to	Numeric
<>	Not Equal to	Alphanumeric
=	Equal to	Alphanumeric
>	Greater than	Numeric
>=	Greater than or equal to	Numeric
Like	Match a portion of the Value	 Use the LIKE operator with the wildcard symbol % (percent) added to the Value field. Examples: LIKE office% will find data beginning with the word "office". LIKE %office will find data ending with the word "office". LIKE %office% will find data containing the word "office".

Working with Drawing Themes

Turn a Theme On/Off

To Show a Theme on a Drawing

- 1. Display a drawing in the Viewer.
- 2. On the Drawing Options panel menu, click Themes.
- 3. On the Themes pane, in the Select Theme list, select a theme to show on the drawing.

To Clear a Theme from a Drawing

3. On the Themes pane, click Clear Themes.

Change the Legend Key Color or Hatch Pattern

- 1. Turn a theme on in the Viewer.
- 2. On the Themes pane, in the Legend Key, click the color swatch to be edited.
- 3. On the Theme dialog, change the color/pattern as needed.
- 4. Click Save.



Changing the legend key color/hatch on system themes, and on public user defined themes, applies the change for all users.

Add the Key Count / Area to the Legend

- 1. Turn a theme on in the Viewer.
- 2. On the Themes pane, do the following:
 - Select the Count checkbox to show the instance count related to each key item in the legend.
 - Select the Area checkbox to show the total area related to each key item in the legend.
- 3. On the Theme dialog, change the color/pattern as needed.
- 4. Click Save.

Create a User Defined Theme

- 1. On the <u>Themes pane</u>, click the Manage Themes control.
- 2. On the Manage Themes dialog, click Add.

- 3. Enter the name of your theme.
- 4. Optional: Enter a description of your theme.
- 5. Click Save.

Build the legend key

- 6. In the Theme grid, select your theme name.
- 7. Click Open.
- 8. On the Legend Items menu, click Add.
- 9. Enter a name for this key item.
- 10. Optional: Enter a description of this key item.
- 11. Select a hatch pattern.
- 12. Select a hatch color.
- 13. Click Save.

Build the search criteria statement

- 14. In the Legend Items group, click the legend key item to be configured.
- 15. In the Detail group menu, click Add.
- 16. Select the space data Attribute to be used as the search data set.
- 17. Select the search Operator.
- 18. Enter the data Value to be searched.
- 19. In the Connector field, do one of the following:
 - Leave the default Operator AND if creating a one-line statement.
 - Select the AND or the OR Operator to connect the next line in a multi-line statement.
- 20. Click Save.
- 21. Repeat steps 15-20 for each additional line in your search criteria statement.
- 22. Repeat steps 8-21 to add additional Legend Key items to your theme.
- 23. Click Close

Edit/Delete a User Defined Theme

Edit the Name of the Theme

- 1. On the <u>Themes pane</u>, click the Manage Themes control.
- 2. In the Themes grid, click the theme to be edited.
- 3. On the Themes grid menu, click Edit.
- 4. Edit the name of the theme.
- 5. Click Save.

Delete a Theme

1. On the <u>Themes pane</u>, click the Manage Themes control.

- 2. In the Themes grid, click the theme to be deleted.
- 3. On the Themes grid menu, click Remove.

Edit a Legend Key Item Name, Color, or Hatch Pattern.

- 1. On the Themes pane, click the Manage Themes control.
- 2. In the Themes grid, click the theme to be edited.
- 3. On the Themes grid menu, click Open.
- 4. In the Legend Items group, select the key to be edited.
- 5. On the Legend Items group menu, click Edit.
- 6. Edit the Name, Pattern, or Color as needed.
- 7. Click Save.

Delete a Legend Key Item

- 1. On the Themes pane, click the Manage Themes control.
- 2. In the Themes grid, click the theme to be edited.
- 3. On the Themes grid menu, click Open.
- 4. In the Legend Items group, select the key to be deleted.
- 5. On the Legend Items group menu, click Remove.

Edit a Search Criteria Statement.

- 1. On the Themes pane, click the Manage Themes control.
- 2. In the Themes grid, click the theme to be edited.
- 3. On the Themes grid menu, click Open.
- 4. In the Legend Items group, select the key to be edited.
- 5. In the Detail group, select the search criteria line to be edited.
- 6. On the Detail group menu, click Edit.
- 7. Edit the search criteria as needed.
- 8. Click Save.

Delete a Search Criteria Statement

- 1. On the Themes pane, click the Manage Themes control.
- 2. In the Themes grid, click the theme to be edited.
- 3. On the Themes grid menu, click Open.
- 4. In the Legend Items group, select the key to be edited.
- 5. In the Detail group, select the search criteria line to be removed.
- 6. On the Detail group menu, click Remove.
- 7. Click Close.

Chapter 1.7: Properties, Buildings, Floor, & Space

The Evolve FM Space Structure

The space structure in Evolve FM is organized into a hierarchy. The Organization is the root of the hierarchy, and is managed from within the Evolve FM Platform Administration module.

In Evolve FM, an organization may encompass many Properties. On those Properties, there may be many Buildings. Buildings may contain many Floors, and on those, there may be many Spaces. Occupants are assigned to spaces.

In an atypical use of the space structure, spaces may be assigned to properties and buildings.



Properties

The Property level in the Evolve FM space structure is typically a campus, a real estate location, land, etc. It may or may not have buildings associated with it.

All properties created in Evolve FM are automatically associated with the Organization.

Property Examples

- A campus
- An office complex
- A specific street address
- A park

Properties Application Grid

The Properties application grid is designed to manage your Property data records stored in the Evolve FM database.

1.7 Space

To Open the Properties Grid

- 1. Click the <u>Applications menu</u>, and then click Space.
- 2. On the grid page bar, click Properties.
- 3. Use the Application Grid tools to Open Property data records.

PROPERTIES APPLICATION GRID

Powered by Evolve						∋ ?
Properties Buildings Floors Space Occupants	5					
∓ ta ⊗ c² :					Search for	Q 🕲
Property ID Name	Description	Туре	Total Area	Address	City	State 🔨 🎗
Corporate HQ		Property	119,232.00		Boston	MA A
DC Manufacturing		Property	76,336.00	10 Mechanic Street	Worcester	MA
Harmon Technologies		Property	16,036.00		Philadelphia	PA c
Manchester NH		Property	51,794.00	160 Canal Street	Manchester	NH D
		Property			Merrimack	NH

Property Dialog

The Property dialog is used to manage individual Property data records in the Evolve FM database.

Property: Corporate HQ						00
Attributes	Picture	Contacts	Documents	Work	Orders	
< >						
Property ID)			Aa	Total Area 119,232	
Name*	e HQ			Aa	Occupancy — Planned Headcount	
Description	1			Aa	396 Headcount: 363	
Detail —				_		
	Si	ave			Cancel	

ATTRIBUTES	DESCRIPTION
	Opens Google Maps to the location defined in the Address-Country dialog fields.
9	
Property ID	Optional field to capture data.
Name	REQUIRED. The name of the property. This name should be unique for each property within the organization.

1.7 Space

Description	Optional field to capture data.
Address	Optional field to capture data.
City	Optional field to capture data.
State	Optional field to capture data.
Postal Code	Optional field to capture data.
Country	Optional field to capture data.
Phone	Optional field to capture data.
Fax	Optional field to capture data.
Web Address	Optional field to capture data.
Total Area	READ-ONLY. Total area of the property. Calculated using the sum of the Total Area of each building within the property.
Planned Headcount	READ-ONLY. Total planned headcount within the property. Calculated using the sum of the Planned Headcount in each building within the property.
Headcount	READ-ONLY. Total headcount within the property. Calculated using the sum of the Headcount in each building within the property.
OTHER	DESCRIPTION
Picture Tab	Use to attach pictures to the data record.
Contacts Tab	Use to assign contacts to the data record.
Documents Tab	Use to attach documents to the data record.
Work Orders Tab	The Operations & Maintenance Module is required for Work Orders.

Buildings

The Building level in the Evolve FM space structure is typically a structure at a specific address, however it may be land, or another entity associated with a Property. It may or may not have floors associated with it.

All buildings created in Evolve FM must be assigned to a property.

Building Examples

- A building
- A grounds shed
- A parking lot
- Land

Buildings Application Grid

The Buildings application grid is designed to manage your Building data records stored in the Evolve FM database.

To Open the Buildings Grid

- 1. Click the <u>Applications menu</u>, and then click Space.
- 2. On the grid page bar, click Buildings.
- 3. Use the Application Grid tools to Add, Open, and Remove Building data records.

BUILDINGS APPLICATION GRID

Space Powered by Evolv	e)					.	₽€	?
Properties Buil	dings Floors Space Oo	cupants						
∓ * ⊐ ⊗	13					Search for	90	8
Building ID	Name	† Description	Туре	Total Area	Property	Address	City /	^ ^
	Fitness Center	Employee health and fitness center	Building	35,303.00	Corporate HQ	100 Union Park Avenue	Bostor	A
	Mechanic Street	Manufacturing	Building	76,336.00	DC Manufacturing	10 Mechanic Street	Worce	8
	Union Park	Office Space	Building	45,863.00	Corporate HQ	90 Union Park Avenue	Bostor	c
	Washington Street	Office Space	Building	38,066.00	Corporate HQ	1358 Washington Street	Bostor	D
		Office Space	Building			160 Canal Street	Manch	

Building Dialog

The Building dialog is used to manage individual Building data records in the Evolve FM database.

Building: 160 Canal Street				O O		
Attributes Detail Floors	Picture Contacts	Documents	Work Orders			
< > 🖻 🕈						
Building ID		Total Area		i i		
		Aa 51,794				
Name*		Occupan	cy			
160 Canal Street		Aa Planned H	eadcount			
Property*		228	228			
Manchester NH	2	 Headcount 	Headcount:			
Description		209	209			
Office Space))	Aa				
Detail		_				
Address						
Save			Cancel			
ATTRIBUTES	DESCRIPTIO	N				
	Opens Goog	le Maps to t	he location def	fined in the		
•						
Building ID	Optional fiel	ld to capture	data.			

	Opens Google Maps to the location defined in the Address-Country dialog fields.
•	
Building ID	Optional field to capture data.
Name	REQUIRED. The name of the building. This name should be unique for each building within the property.
Property	REQUIRED. The property to which the building is assigned.
Description	Optional field to capture data.
Address	Optional field to capture data.
City	Optional field to capture data.
State	Optional field to capture data.
Postal Code	Optional field to capture data.
Country	Optional field to capture data.
Phone	Optional field to capture data.
Fax	Optional field to capture data.
Web Address	Optional field to capture data.

58

Total Area	READ-ONLY. Total area of the building. Calculated using the sum of the Total Area of each floor within the building.
Planned Headcount	READ-ONLY. Total planned headcount within the building. Calculated using the sum of the Planned Headcount on each floor within the building.
Headcount	READ-ONLY. Total headcount within the building. Calculated using the sum of the Headcount on each floor within the building.
DETAILS	DESCRIPTION
Owner	Optional field to capture data. Data is controlled in a Lookup List.
Ownership	Optional field to capture data. Data is controlled in a Lookup List.
Floors Above Ground	Optional field to capture data.
Floors Below Ground	Optional field to capture data.
Condition	Optional field to capture data. Data is controlled in a Lookup List.
Condition Index	Optional field to capture data.
Construction Type	Optional field to capture data. Data is controlled in a Lookup List.
Sprinklers	Optional field to capture data. Data is controlled in a Lookup List.
ADA Compliant	Optional field to capture data.
Landmark	Optional field to capture data.
Construction Date	Optional field to capture data.
Occupancy Date	Optional field to capture data.
Renovation Date	Optional field to capture data.
Original Cost	Optional field to capture data.
Replacement Cost	Optional field to capture data.
Last Renovation Cost	Optional field to capture data.
Longitude	Optional field to capture data.
Latitude	Optional field to capture data.
Altitude	Optional field to capture data.
FLOORS	DESCRIPTION
Floor List	Use to view floors assigned to the building.
OTHER	DESCRIPTION
Picture Tab	Use to attach pictures to the data record.
Contacts Tab	Use to assign contacts to the data record.
Documents Tab	Use to attach documents to the data record.
Work Orders Tab	The Operations & Maintenance Module is required for Work Orders.

Floors

The Floor level in the Evolve FM space structure is typically a level of a Building.

All floors created in Evolve FM must be assigned to a building.

Floors Application Grid

The Floors application grid is designed to manage your Floor data records stored in the Evolve FM database.

To Open the Floors Grid

- 1. Click the <u>Applications menu</u>, and then click Space.
- 2. On the grid page bar, click Floors.
- 3. Use the Application Grid tools to Add, Open, and Remove Floor data records.

FLOORS APPLICATION GRID

Space Powered by Evolve						39	2 🖵 🕀 🕐
Properties Buildings	Floors Space Occupants						
≂ *⊐ ⊗ ď						Search for	Q 🛞
Name	Description	Туре	Total Area	Property	Building		^*
В	Basement	Floor	98,319.00	Merrimack NH	Daniel Webster Highway		- A. (
1	Floor 1	Floor	10,671.60	Manchester NH	160 Canal Street		
2	Floor 2	Floor	20,561.10	Manchester NH	160 Canal Street		e
3		Floor	20,561.10		canal Street		

Floor Dialog

The Floor dialog is used to manage individual Floor data records in the Evolve FM database.

Floor				00	3
Attributes	Contacts	Documents	Work Orders		
$\langle \rangle$					
Name*				Total Area	-
2			Aa	19,048 #	
Description				Calculation Method:	
Floor 2				Drawing Gross Area	
			Aa	Manual Update Only	
Property*				Occupancy	
Corporate	e HQ		•	Planned Headcount	
Building*				70	
Washingt	on Street		-	Headcount:	-
	Sav	e		Cancel	

ATTRIBUTES	DESCRIPTION
Name	REQUIRED. The name of the floor (this is used in the Drawing Navigator Tree). The name should be unique for each floor within the building.
Description	Optional field to capture data.
Property	REQUIRED. The property to which the floor is assigned.
Building	REQUIRED. The building to which the floor is assigned.
Sort Order	The order in which the floors will be organized in the Drawing Navigator tree list. EX: $1 = 1^{st}$ drawing in tree list, $2 = 2^{nd}$ drawing in tree list, etc.
Total Area	Total floor area.
Calculation Method	 READ-ONLY. Displays the data entry method used to calculate the Total Area. Methods include the following: Space Total (default). The area sum of all spaces assigned to the floor. Drawing Gross Area. The area imported from the CAD Gross Area polyline. Manually Entered. A value entered by a user.
Manual Update Only	Sets the Calculation Method to ignore Space Total and Drawing Gross Area calculation methods during drawing import.
Planned Headcount	READ-ONLY. Total planned headcount on the floor. Calculated using the sum of the Planned Headcount of each space assigned to the floor.
Headcount	READ-ONLY. Total headcount on the floor. Calculated using the sum of the Headcount on each space assigned to the floor.
OTHER	DESCRIPTION
Contacts Tab	Use to assign contacts to the data record.
Documents Tab	Use to attach documents to the data record.
Work Orders Tab	The Operations & Maintenance Module is required for Work Orders.

Space

The Space level in the Evolve FM space structure is typically a room or other designated area located on a floor within a building, however in an atypical use of the space structure, spaces may be assigned to Properties and Buildings.

Linked vs. Unlinked

Linked

Importing a DWF file into Evolve FM is the most common method of creating linked space records in Evolve FM. During the DWF import process, the space records are linked to a Drawing record. That link is what allows you to click spaces on a drawing in the Drawing Viewer.

Unlinked

Using the Add control, located on the Space application grid, creates unlinked space records. Unlinked space records are not linked to a Drawing record.

IMPORTANT! Unlinked space records can be associated with a Property, Building, and Floor using the location

selection lists on the Space Dialog, however that assignment does not link them to a Drawing record, even if one may exist for that location.

Unlinked space records are referred to as Orphan records, meaning they live in the Evolve FM database within the Space application grid, but do not have a parent DWF file.

Space Application Grid

The Space application grid is designed to manage your Space data records stored in the Evolve FM database.

To Open the Space Grid

- 1. Click the Applications menu, and then click Space.
- 2. On the grid page bar, click Space.
- 3. Use the Application Grid tools to Add, Open, and Remove Space data records.

SPACE APPLICATION GRID

Space Powered by Evolution							2 🖵	€ ?
Properties Bu	ldings Floors	Space	Occupants					
∓ *⊐ ⊗						Search for		۹ 🛛
↑ Space ID	Space Nan	пе	Description	Space Category	Space Class	Space Sub Class	Area	^ ^
B015				Service Area	Primary Circulation	Vestibule	37.03	А
B101				Usable Area		Conference 18	651.36	в

Space Dialog

The Space dialog is used to manage individual Space data records in the Evolve FM database.

Space: U9-212A	8 Ø
Attributes Detail FICM Picture	Contacts Occupants Assets Allocation Documents Work Orders
< > 🗈 🕑	
Space ID*	Tag
U9-212A	Aa 000001801
Space Name	Schedulable
Description	Aa Allocate Manually
Description	Area 69 #
	Aa Area 2
Property*	#
Cornorate HO	Occupancy ·
Save	Cancel
ATTRIBUTES	DESCRIPTION
Open Drawing	Click to open the Space Location Viewer and see the space highlighted on the drawing. Use the zoom controls to pan & zoom the drawing.
Space ID	REQUIRED. The unique ID assigned to the space. This value is typically imported on a DWF file, and is one way to link Evolve FM to the DWF.
Space Name	Optional field to capture data.
Description	Optional field to capture data.
Property	REQUIRED. The property to which the space is assigned.
Building	REQUIRED. The building to which the space is assigned.
Floor	REQUIRED. The floor to which the space is assigned.
Space Category	Optional field to capture data. Level 1 of the <u>Space Classification hierarchy</u> .
Space Class	Optional field to capture data. Level 2 of the Space Classification hierarchy.
Space Sub Class	Optional field to capture data. Level 3 of the Space Classification hierarchy.
Тад	Click the Scan Code icon to activate your device camera to scan a QR Code and add its value to the Tag textbox. This function is only available with the Evolve FM Scan Code Professional Tool add-on.
Schedulable	Optional field to capture data.
Allocate Manually	When selected, business units are manually assigned to the Allocation tab by a user.
Area	The area of the space. The value is typically imported on a DWF file, but it may be entered by a user.
Area 2	An optional field to capture a secondary area of the space. The value can be imported on a DWF file, or entered by a user.
Planned Headcount	The number of people that can occupy the space at the same time. Affects occupancy.
Headcount	READ-ONLY. The count of occupants assigned to the space. Affects occupancy.
DETAIL	DESCRIPTION

Condition	Optional field to capture data.
Condition Index	Optional field to capture data.
Architectural Features	Optional field to capture data.
ADA Compliant	Optional field to capture data.
Wet Lab	Optional field to capture data.
Communication	Optional field to capture data.
Electrical	Optional field to capture data.
Gas	Optional field to capture data.
Special Plumbing	Optional field to capture data.
Temperature Control	Optional field to capture data.
Ventilation	Optional field to capture data.
Water	Optional field to capture data.
FICM	DESCRIPTION
Primary Use	Optional field to capture data.
Alternate Use	Optional field to capture data.
Function Category	Optional field to capture data.
Function	Optional field to capture data.
Discipline	Optional field to capture data.
Suitability	Optional field to capture data.
OTHER	DESCRIPTION
Picture Tab	Use to attach pictures to the data record.
Contacts Tab	Use to assign contacts to the data record.
Occupants Tab	A list of all occupants in the space. Use to move occupants in/out of the space, and to see space occupancy history.
Assets Tab	A list of all assets in the space. Use to move assets in/out of the space.
Allocation Tab	The business unit(s) assigned to the space.
Documents Tab	Use to attach documents to the data record.
Work Orders Tab	The Operations & Maintenance Module is required for Work Orders.

Chapter 1.8: Contacts

About Contacts

The Evolve FM Contacts module is designed to manage all of the people, and company, data records associated with your organization.

People Hierarchy

The Contacts module is the core collection of people records in Evolve FM. User, Occupant, and Labor records are all subset records of the Contacts list. Each User, Occupant, and Labor record is linked to its root Contact record.



Contacts Application Grid

The Contacts application grid is designed to manage your Contact data records stored in the Evolve FM database.

To Open the Contacts Grid

- 1. Click the <u>Applications menu</u>, and then click Contacts.
- 2. Use the Application Grid tools to Add, Open, and Remove Contact data records.

CONTACTS APPLICATION GRID

Cont Power	tacts ed by Evolve						≟ 🖵 ∋ 0
. *	86:					Search for	Q 🕲
Pict	Name	† Last Name	First Name	Company Name	Title	Email	Worl 🔨
1	Bruce E Amidon	Amidon	Bruce E		Accounting Super	AmidonBE@ssfm.com	. A.
1	Anilkumar R Amin	Amin	Anilkumar R		Business Specialist	AminAR@ssfm.com	978- c
	Sarah H Anderson	Anderson	Sarah H		Accounting Super	AndersonSH@ssfm.com	D
-				and the second se			

Contact Dialog

The Contact dialog is used to manage individual Contact data records in the Evolve FM database.

IMPORTANT! The data entered on Contact dialog directly affects linked User, Occupant, and Labor records, if they exist



ontact: Sarah H /	Anderson - Acco	ounting Su	00
1	PersonCompany		
Name			
			Aa
First Name* Sarah H			Aa
First Name* Sarah H Last Name*			
First Name* Sarah H Last Name* Anderson			Aa

CONTROL	DESCRIPTION
Change Picture	Use to add a User Image to the Contact dialog.
	Default Person Picture (60x80 pixels)
	Default Company Picture (70x72 pixels)
	TIP: Format your User Images to about 70x70 – 80x80 pixels for best results.
Person	Identifies the contact record as a Person. People can be in the Occupant, User, & Labor lists.
Company	Identifies the contact record as a Company. Companies can be in the Labor list.
First Name	REQUIRED if the contact type is Person. Enter the person's first name, and middle initial/name if needed. The combination of First Name and Last Name should be unique within your contact list. EX: John M Smith, John P Smith, John L Smith, etc.
Last Name	REQUIRED if the contact type is Person. Enter the person's last name, and applicable suffix if needed.
Company Name	REQUIRED if the contact type is Company.
Title	Optional field to capture data.
Employee ID	Optional field to capture data. This field is typically used as the unique ID for people data records.
Work Phone	Optional field to capture data.

Mobile Phone	Optional field to capture data.
Home Phone	Optional field to capture data.
Address	Optional field to capture data.

IMPORTANT!

City	Optional field to capture data.
State	Optional field to capture data.
Postal Code	Optional field to capture data.
Email	Optional field to capture data.

Add, Edit, Remove a Contact

Add a New Contact

The initial bulk import of Contact records is typically performed by your Evolve FM administrator. The steps below outline the procedure to add individual Contact records to Evolve FM.

- 1. On the Contacts application grid, click Add.
- 2. On the Contact dialog select Person, or Company and do one of the following:
 - Person: Enter First Name, Last name and any other data fields as needed.
 - Company: Enter Company Name, and any other data fields as needed.

Edit a Contact

- 1. On the Contacts application grid, select the contact to be edited, and then click Open.
- 2. Edit the data fields as needed, and click Save.

Changes made to a Contact record, affect its linked User, Occupant, and Labor records.

Remove a Contact

- 1. On the Contacts application grid, select the contact to be removed.
- 2. Click Remove.



When a Contact record is removed, the linked Occupant and Labor records are also removed from Evolve

FM. A linked Occupant will be moved out of any space they may occupy, and the occupancy will be added to the space history. Removing a Contact record does not remove its linked User record; Users must be removed from within Platform Administration.

CAFM Resources

Add Contacts to a Data Record

Evolve FM Contact records can be assigned to Evolve FM data records, to identify the person/company to be contacted in relationship to the data record.

Contact Examples

- A landlord, as a contact on a building record.
- A catering service, as a contact on a conference room space record.
- An HVAC supplier, as a contact on an asset equipment record.

The Contacts Tab

The Contacts tab, is common to the Evolve FM data record dialog, and is used to assign Evolve FM Contact records to the data record. The Contacts tab, located on the Space dialog is illustrated below.

Use the Add, Remove, and Open, controls to manage contact records assigned to the dialog.

Space: U	8-388 - Beaco	on Hill								0	8
		ICM	Picture	Contacts	Occupants	Assets	Allocati	on Documents	Work	Orders	
Θ								Search for		Q	\otimes
† Name			Туре	4		Work Ph	one				^ *
Brian A R	eifler		Cater	ing Service		978-263-	0058				
Leslie M (Shiz		Event	Coordinator		978-263-	0474				8
											с
											0
											E
											•
2						1	Name		¥	≞♠	E > ≫
2					Close		Name		×	≞♠	~*
2 ITEM	CONTROL		DI	ESCRIPTION			Name		*	±♠	~*

CONTACTS TAB, SPACE DIALOG

2	Remove	Removes the selected contact record from the data record.
3	Open	Opens the Record Contact dialog, for the contact selected on the tab.
4	Contact Type	The type of contact, as it relates to this data record.

The Record Contact Dialog

The Record Contact dialog, displays when the Open control is used to open a Contact record assigned to the Contacts tab of a dialog form.

Record Contact		00
1	Brian A Reifler ReiflerBA@ssfm.co 978-263-0058	m
Type Catering Serv	ice	~+
Phone		
Work Phone		
978-263-0058	1	6
Mobile Phone		

This dialog contains the contact's Phone and Address information, and the Type list, which can be used to define the relationship between the contact and the data record to which they have been assigned. Edits made to the Phone and Address data on this dialog affect the Contact record in Evolve FM.

About the Contact Type

The Type list located on the Record Contact dialog, shown in the image above, and on the Select Contact dialog shown in the image below, is used to describe the association between the Contact, and in what manner they are related to the object they've been assigned.



-						
	Cynthia A Barry		Barry		н	
4				Þ	×	~
1035		Last Name	Ŧ	≞♠	⇒Â	
Туре:						+
	Save		Cancel			

For example, when a Contact record is added to the Contacts tab on the Building dialog, a Contact Type assignment of "Landlord" would describe the Contact as the landlord of that building.

Contact Type Examples

- Landlord
- Catering Service
- Supplier
- Primary Investigator

Chapter 1.9: Occupants
About Occupants

Occupants are defined as the people who will be able to occupy a space in Evolve FM.



Evolve FM Occupants are a subset of your Evolve FM Contact records, meaning each Occupant record linked to its associated Contact record.

When adding Occupants to Evolve FM, you can select people from your Contact list and add them to your Occupant list, or you can create new Occupant records, which will automatically create new linked Contact records, and will add those new records to the Contacts grid.



Move In/Out of Spaces

IMPORTANT! For every Occupant record in Evolve FM, there is a linked Contact record.

Occupants Application Grid

The Occupants application grid is located in the Space module, and is designed to manage your Occupant data records stored in the Evolve FM database.

To Open the Occupants Grid

- 1. Click the <u>Applications menu</u>, and then click Space.
- 2. On the grid page bar, click Occupants.
- 3. Use the Application Grid tools to Add, Open, and Remove Occupant data records.

OCCUPANTS APPLICATION GRID

	20 ed by Evolve					1	∋ ?
Propertie	s Buildings Floors Space Occupa	ants					
Ŧ C						Search for	۹.
Pict	Name	Last Name	First Name	Company Name	Email		^
1	Mary T Mcauliffe	Mcauliffe	Mary T		McauliffeMT@ssfm.com	User Experience (4	02) A
1	Raphael T Ipinmoroti	Ipinmoroti	Raphael T		lpinmorotiRT@ssfm.com	User Experience (4	02) _c
1	Donald R Kiley	Kiley	Donald R		KileyDR@ssfm.com	User Experience (4	02)

Occupant Dialog

The Occupant dialog is used to manage individual Occupant data records in the Evolve FM database.

Occupant: Alfred N Acevedo - Sales N	Manager 🚫 🛞
Attributes Contact Information Sp	paces Assets
< > ²	
Alfred N Acevedo Sales Manager AcevedoAN@ssfm. 5432	com
Category	
Full Time	**
Employee ID 11020786	Aa
Save	Cancel
ATTRIBUTES	DESCRIPTION
Open Drawing	Click to open the Occupant Location Viewer and see the occupant's space highlighted on a drawing. If an occupant resides in 2 or more spaces, use the viewer's location list to select, and view, another space. Use the zoom controls to pan & zoom the drawing.
Category	Use this field to categorize your occupants. For example, Full Time, Part Time, Contractor, etc.
Employee ID	The Human Resource Employee ID number assigned to the occupant. This field is typically used as the unique identifier in the Contacts grid, and in the Occupants grid.
Tier 1	The Tier 1 business unit assigned to the occupant.
Start Time	The time the occupant begins their work day.
End Time	The time the occupant ends their work day.
CONTACT INFORMATION	IMPORTANT: Contact information is linked to the Occupant's root Contact record.
Company Name	Optional field to capture data.
Title	Optional field to capture data.
First Name	REQUIRED . Enter the person's first name and middle initial/name if needed. The combination of First Name and Last Name should be unique within your occupant list. EX: John M Smith, John P Smith, John L Smith, etc.
Last Name	REQUIRED . Enter the person's last name and applicable suffix if needed. The combination of First Name and Last Name should be unique within your occupant list. EX: John Smith Jr, John Smith Sr
Work Phone	Optional field to capture data.
Mobile Phone	Optional field to capture data.
	1
Home Phone	Optional field to capture data.
Home Phone Address	Optional field to capture data. Optional field to capture data.

State	Optional field to capture data.
Postal Code	Optional field to capture data.
Email	Optional field to capture data.
OTHER	DESCRIPTION
Spaces Tab	A list of spaces that the occupant occupies. Use to move the occupant in/out of a space and to view the occupant's past/present/future space occupancies.

Add, Edit, Remove an Occupant

Occupant records are typically bulk imported into Evolve FM using a data import file from Human Resources. After the initial import, there may be a periodic import from HR, or you may manage occupants using the Occupants applications grid.

Add a New Occupant

- 1. On the Occupants application grid, click Add.
- 2. On the Select Occupant dialog do one of the following:
 - Use the grid search features to find, and select, the Contact record(s) that you are adding to Occupants. This method will link the existing Contact record(s) to the new Occupant record(s).
 - Click NEW to create a new Occupant record. This method will automatically create a new Contact record too, and add it to the Contacts grid. The new Occupant record is automatically linked to the new Contact record.

IMPORTANT! For every Occupant record, there is an associated root Contact record.

Edit an Occupant

- 1. On the Occupants application grid, select the occupant to be edited, and then click Open.
- 2. Edit the data fields as needed, and click Save.

IMPORTANT! Changes made to an Occupant's Contact information, affect the Occupant's root Contact record.

Remove an Occupant

- 1. On the Occupants application grid, select the occupant to be removed.
- 2. Click Remove.

```
IMPORTANT!
```

ANT! If the occupant is assigned to a space, they will be moved out of the space, and the occupancy will be

added to the space history. The Occupant's linked Contact record is not removed. To remove their Contact record, remove the person from the Contacts application grid.

Move an Occupant In or Out of a Space

There are two Evolve FM dialogs that are used to manage people in spaces, the Occupant dialog, and the Space dialog. Either can be used to move an occupant in to, or out of, of a space in Evolve FM.

Occupant Dialog Move

The Occupant dialog can be used to manage an occupant's space assignments. The Spaces tab located on the dialog, shows all spaces where the occupant is currently assigned, and can be used to move an occupant in to, or out of, spaces in Evolve FM. The dialog move controls 1-5 are outlined on the next page.



ccup		Acevedo - Sales Mana				00
				Search for		Q 🔇
	Space ID	Space Name	Property	Building	Floor	~
0	U9-212A		Corporate HQ	Union Park	9	A
0	W2-211		Corporate HQ	Washington Street	2	в
						С
						D
						Е



The Occupant dialog may display options 1-5 on the More Actions flyout menu. Stretching the dialog to expand its width will display the icons shown in the above image.

Space Dialog Move

The Space dialog can be used to manage the occupants who are assigned to a space. The Occupants tab on the dialog, shows all occupants assigned to the space, and can be used to move occupants in to, or out of, a space in Evolve FM. The dialog move controls 1-5 are outlined on the next page.

Space: U9-212A								00
1 ^{br} 2 3 ^{tai} 4 ^{FI} 5 ^{Pictur}	e Contacts	Occupants	Assets	Allo	cation	Documents	Work	Orders
					Searc	ch for		0.0
Name	Occupa	ncy Type		Move	In	Mo	ve Out	~
O Alfred N Acevedo				09/01/2	2016			А
								в
								с
								D

1.9 Occupants

ITEM	CONTROL	DESCRIPTION
1	Add	Opens the Select dialog, which is used to move an occupant into the space. The current date is used as the Move In date.
2	Move Out	 Opens the Occupant Move Out dialog, which is used to move an occupant out of a space. Move out options include: Use the current date as the Move Out date. The occupant will be moved out of the space when Save is clicked. Change the Move Out date to schedule the move for another date. The occupant will remain in the space until the scheduled move out date. The move out will happen automatically on the scheduled date. Note: Move Out will add the move to the space occupancy history.
3	Remove	Removes a selected occupant from the space. Note: Remove will not add the move to the space occupancy history.
4	Open	Opens the Space Occupant dialog for a selected occupant.
5	History	Shows the history of past, present, and future occupancies.

Dialog Move Controls

The Space Occupant Dialog

The Space Occupant dialog, is used to manage the space occupancy of an occupant in a space

To Open the Space Occupant Dialog

- 1. Do one of the following:
 - On the Spaces tab of the Occupant dialog, select an occupant and click Open.
 - On the Occupants tab of the Space dialog, select an occupant and click Open.

pace Occupant		0	8
1	Alfred N Acevedo Sales Manager AcevedoAN@ssfm.com 5432		
Tier 1 Sales (304)		*	
Occupancy -			
Occupancy -			
Occupancy Type			
1124	2	*	
1124		*+	
Occupancy Type		**	
Occupancy Type Move In*		**	
Occupancy Type Move In* 09/01/2016	:	*	

1.9 Occupants

CONTROL	DESCRIPTION
Tier 1	The business unit assigned to the occupant. Changes made to the assignment will update the Occupant record.
Occupancy Type	Use to define the association between the occupant and the space.
Move In	 The date the occupant was moved into the space. The current date is the default move in date. Use the Move In date to schedule the move for another date. The occupant will not show in the space until the date entered here, and then the move in will happen automatically on the scheduled date.
Move Out	 The date the occupant will be moved out of the space. Use the Move Out date to schedule the move. If the Move Out date is the current date, the occupant will be moved when Save is used. If the Move Out date is a future date, the occupant will remain in the space until the date entered here, and then the move out will happen automatically on the scheduled date.
Start Time	The time the occupant will begin to use this space each day.
End Time	The time the occupant will stop using this space each day.
All Day	Click to set Start time to 12:00AM and the End to 11:59PM.

About the Occupancy Type

Occupancy Type is used to describe the association between the occupant and in what manner they are occupying the space.

Occupancy Type Examples

- Floor Warden
- Primary Investigator
- Desk by Window

The Occupant Type assignment can be made using the Occupancy Type list, located on the Space Occupant dialog, or on the Select dialog at the time an occupant is added to a space record, as shown in the image below.

SELECT DIALOG, TYPE SELECTION LIST

1	Cynthia A Barry		Barry		н
•				÷	××
<mark>1035</mark>		Last Name	•	≞♠	₽
Туре:					*
	Save		Cancel		

Chapter 1.11: Pick & Click Occupant and Asset Moves

Pick & Click Moves

Pick & Click moves are made from the Moves pane located in the Drawing Viewer.

Preparing for Pick & Click Moves

- To view vacant seats, you can apply the Avaialbe Seats theme to the drawing in the Viewer.
- If needed, the Moves pane can be streched to show more columns in the Moves grid.
- If needed, the Move grid column headers can be rearranged, sorted, and turned on/off using the column header controls.
- If needed, use the Filter controls to filter the Move grid records.

PICK & CLICK MOVES

Drawings Union Park: 8 - Tion Park					
9 tì Q (P				
Occupants					
▲ Fiters				Space (D)	
Cost Center		.*		Space Name	
Administration (501)				Description:	
Spaces					
<1				Area: Classification	
Last Name				a second second second	
				Space Category:	
Apply		Clear		Space Class:	
				Space Sub Class	
† Name	Employee ID	Cost Center		Occupancy	
Ala-Nisula, Mai S	11020791	Administration (501)		Planned Headcount	
Forehand, Elizabeth M	11021094	Administration (501)		Headcount	
Henault, Melissa A	11021090	Administration (501)		Available Seats	
Mckieman, Danielle L	11021081	Administration (501)		Allocation	
Russell, Mary C	10020070	Administration (501)			
Smith, Brenda D	10020177	Administration (501)	·····································		
				1.1.1	
Select an item to:	start a move.			ď	

To Move Occupants into Spaces

- 1. On the Drawing Navigator panel, click ¹ Moves to display the Moves pane.
- 2. In the Move Scope list, choose Occupants.
- 3. OPTIONAL: Expand Filters and search for occupants in to the Move grid. The image above illustrates the following filters:
 - a. Cost Center = Administration
 - b. Spaces <1

Results: Show occupants assigned to the Administration cost center, and not assigned to a space.

CAFM Resources

Space & Asset Management (Click to return to the Table of Contents) Evolve FM

1.11 Pick & Click Moves

- 4. In the Move grid, pick the Occupant to be moved.
- 5. Click a space on the drawing to seat the occupant.
- 6. On the <u>Space Occupant dialog</u>, use the current date as the Move In date, or enter a future date to schedule the move.



When scheduling the move for a future date, the person will not appear in the space until the Move In

date is reached. When the Move In date is reached, the person will automatically move into the space.

- 7. Optional:
 - a. Assign an Occupancy Type.
 - b. Enter the occupant's Start Time/End Time.
- 8. Select a Move In option:
 - a. Move into this space (the person will also remain in any other space that they occupy).
 - b. Move into this space and out of all others (the person will occupy only this space).

To Move Assets into Spaces

- 1. On the Drawing Navigator panel, click ⁿ Moves to display the Moves pane.
- 2. In the Move Scope list, choose Assets.
- 3. OPTIONAL: Expand Filters and search for assets in the Move grid.
- 4. In the Move grid, pick the Asset to be moved.
- 5. Click a space on the drawing to put the asset.
- 6. On the Asset Move dialog, click Move into this space.

Pick & Click Between Drawings

The Pick & Click function activates when you pick an occupant or asset in the Moves list, and will remain active until you click to select a space on a drawing, or until you click Cancel Move. This allows you to use the Drawing Navigator to move between drawings while still active in the Move.

- 1. On the Drawing Navigator panel, click Moves to display the Moves pane.
- 2. In the Move Scope list, choose Occupants or Assets.

- 3. In the Move grid, pick the Occupant/Asset to be moved.
- 4. On the Drawing Navigator panel, click Orawing Navigator, and then select a drawing from the tree list.
- 5. Click a space on that drawing to place the Occupant/Asset.

Chapter 1.12: Documents

About Documents

All document and image files uploaded to Evolve FM (excluding User images), are stored in the Documents module of Evolve FM. These documents and image files can be selected from the Documents module, and assigned to a data record using the <u>Documents tab</u> located on the record's dialog form.

Document Hierarchy

The Documents module is the core collection of all documents and pictures in Evolve FM. Picture records and Plan Room records are subset records of the Documents module. Each Picture and Plan Room record is linked to its root Document record.



Documents Application Grid

The Documents application grid is designed to manage Document records stored in the Evolve FM database.

To Open the Documents Grid

- 1. Click the Applications menu, and then click Documents.
- 2. Use the Application Grid tools to Add, Remove, Open, and Download Document records.

DOCUMENTS APPLICATION GRID

Ŧ						Search for C	20
	1 Name	Description	Category	Uploaded By	Uploaded	File Name	~
1	AT Operation-Maint Manual	AT Operation and Maintenance Manual	HVAC	Evolve Administrator	4/20/2013	new-71-AT CoolingTower Operati	A
	AT Replacement Parts	Cooling Tower Replacement Part List	HVAC	Evolve Administrator	4/20/2013	new-71-AT Replacement Parts.pdf	в
2	ATC-E	Evaporative Condenser	HVAC	Evolve Administrator	4/19/2013	new-71-atc-e.jpg	
2	ATC-E Replacement Parts	ATC-E Replacement Part List	HVAC	Evolve Administrator	4/20/2013	new-71-ATC-E replacement parts	D
2	ATC-E Seasonal Shutdown	ATC-E Seasonal Shutdown Instructions	HVAC	Evolve Administrator	4/20/2013	new-71-ATC-E Seasonal Shutdo	ε

Document Dialog

The Document dialog is used to manage individual Document records in the Evolve FM database.

Document	8 8			
$\langle \rangle \pm \mp$	Q			
Detail	A			
Name*				
AT Operation-Maint Man	ual Aa			
Description				
AT Operation and Mainte	nance Manual Aa			
Category				
HVAC				
File	· ·			
Save	Cancel			
CONTROL	DESCRIPTION			
Name	REQUIRED. The name of the document. The name should be unique for each document record.			
Description	Optional field to capture data.			
Category	Use this list to categorize your documents.			
File Information	READ-ONLY. The document file name assigned by Evolve FM. READ-ONLY. The date the document file was uploaded to Evolve FM. READ-ONLY. The name of the user who uploaded the document file.			
Download	Use to download the document file. Creates a .zip download package containing the document.			
The Upload	Use to upload a document to Evolve FM.			
Preview	Displays a preview of the document file. Your device must have the native document application to preview the document (ex. Adobe Reader, EXCEL, etc.).			

Working with Documents

Upload or Download Documents

Upload a New Document

- 1. On the Documents application grid, click New.
- 2. On the Document dialog, enter the name of your document.
- 3. Enter a Description of the document (optional).
- 4. Assign a Category.
- 5. Click Upload, and navigate to, and select, the document file to be uploaded, and then click Save.
- 6. Click Save.

Download a Document(s)

Documents in the application grid can be downloaded using the Download control located on the grid menu.

- 1. Select one or more documents on the Documents application grid.
- 2. Click 👱 Download.

Creates a .zip download package containing the selected document(s).

Edit or Remove Documents

Edit a Document Record

- 1. Select a Document record in the Documents application grid, and then click Open.
- 2. Edit the data in the form as needed and/or upload another document file to replace the existing file.
- 3. Click Save.

Changes made to a Document record, affect its linked Picture, and/or Plan Room records.

Remove a Document Record(s)

- 1. In the Documents application grid, select one or more document records.
- 2. Click Remove.

IMPORTANT! If the Document record is an image file (.jpg, .gif, etc.) its linked Picture record is also removed from

Evolve FM. If the Document record is a Plan Room document, the document must be removed from the Plan Room module first, and then removed from the Documents module.

```
CAFM Resources
```

Attach a Document to a Data Record

The Documents Tab

The Documents tab is common to the Evolve FM data record dialog, and is used to attach Evolve FM Document records to the data record. The Documents tab, located on the Space dialog is illustrated below.

Space: L	18-388 - Beacon Hill							0	8
(T) ^b C	3 4 5 Pictu	re Contacts	Occupants	Assets	Allocation	Documents	Work	Orders	
Đ S					Sea	rch for		Q	8
÷	Name		Cate	egory					^ ^
🔁 Cor	ference Room Set-Diagran	1	Spa	ce					
									B
									C.
									D
									E
									∨ [*]
1					Name		*	± ↑	
			Close	•					
ITEM	CONTROL	DESCRIPTIO	N						
1	Add		elect Docume data record.	ent dialog	. Use the dial	og to a select	: docum	ient(s)	and
2	Remove	Removes the	e selected do	cument(s) from the da	ta record.			
3	Open	Opens the D	ocument dial	og, for th	e document	selected on tl	he tab.		
4	Preview	Opens a pre	view window	for the se	elected docu	ment.			
5	Download	Creates a .zi	p download p	oackage c	ontaining the	selected doc	ument(s).	

DOCUMENTS TAB, SPACE DIALOG

Chapter 1.13: Pictures

About Pictures

Evolve FM Pictures are a subset of your Evolve FM Document records. All Document records that have been identified as an image file are filtered into the Pictures module. When you add a new picture to Evolve FM from within the Pictures module, the new image file is automatically added to the Documents module as well.

These image files are selected from the Pictures module, and assigned to a data record using the <u>Picture</u> <u>tab</u> located on the record's dialog form.



IMPORTANT! For every Picture record in Evolve FM, there is a linked Document record.

Pictures Application Grid

The Pictures application grid is designed to manage your Picture records stored in the Evolve FM database.

To Open the Pictures Grid

- 1. Click the Applications menu, and then click Pictures.
- 2. Use the Application Grid tools to Add, Remove, Open, and Download Picture records.

PICTURES APPLICATION GRID

8	or Q	Search f				₫ ₹ :	- *
~	File Name	Uploaded	Uploaded By	Category	Description	† Name	Picture
A	new-71-Hydrant.jpg	4/22/2013	Evolve Administrator	Life Safety		Hydrant	1
B C	new-71-Intensity III.jpg	4/20/2013	Evolve Administrator	Mobile Phone		IntensityIII	er o
D	new-71-iphone-5s-box-j	7/25/2015	Evolve Administrator	Mobile Phone		iPhone 5s	Anal
F	new-71-lenovo-thinkcer	7/25/2015	Evolve Administrator	Computer Network		Lenovo PC Config	9
G	new-71-Printer_Lexmar	7/25/2015	Evolve Administrator	Office Equipment	Network Printer	Lexmark_E120	

Picture Dialog

The Picture dialog is used to manage individual Picture records in the Evolve FM database.

Picture	00
< > ± ∓ ∅	
Detail	
Name*	
HDTV-SHARP	Aa
Description Sharp LED Flat-Panel HDTV	ĭ
	Aa
Category	
Electronics	**
File	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Save	Cancel
CONTROL	DESCRIPTION
Name	REQUIRED. The name of the
	The name should be unique
Description	Optional field to capture da
Description Category	Use this field to categorize
Category	Use this field to categorize READ-ONLY. The picture file
	Use this field to categorize READ-ONLY. The picture file READ-ONLY. The date the p
Category File Information	Use this field to categorize READ-ONLY. The picture file READ-ONLY. The date the p READ-ONLY. The name of t
Category	Use this field to categorize READ-ONLY. The picture file READ-ONLY. The date the p
Category File Information	Use this field to categorize READ-ONLY. The picture file READ-ONLY. The date the p READ-ONLY. The name of the Use to download the picture
Category File Information Download	Use this field to categorize READ-ONLY. The picture file READ-ONLY. The date the p READ-ONLY. The name of t Use to download the pictur Creates a .zip download pa

Working with Pictures

Upload or Download Pictures

Upload a New Picture

- 1. On the Pictures application grid, click New.
- 2. On the Picture dialog, enter the name of your picture.

- 3. Enter a Description of the picture (optional).
- 4. Assign a Category.
- 5. Click Upload, and navigate to, and select, the image file to be uploaded, and then click Save.
- 6. Click Save.

A new Picture record, automatically creates a new linked Document record.

Download a Picture(s)

Pictures in the application grid can be downloaded using the Download control located on the grid menu.

- 1. Select one or more pictures on the application grid.
- 2. Click 👱 Download.

NOTE! Creates a .zip download package containing the selected picture(s).

Edit or Remove Pictures

Edit a Picture Record

- 1. Select a Picture record in the application grid, and then click Open.
- 2. Edit the data in the form as needed and/or upload another picture file to replace the existing file.
- 3. Click Save.

IMPORTANT! Changes made to a Picture record, affect the linked Document record.



Remove a Picture Record(s)

- 1. In the Pictures application grid, select one or more picture records.
- 2. Click Remove.

The linked Document record will also be removed.

Attach a Picture to a Data Record

The Picture Tab

The Picture tab is common to the Evolve FM data record dialog, and is used to attach Evolve FM Picture records to the data record. The Picture tab, located on the Asset dialog is illustrated below.

PICTURE TAB, ASSET DIALOG



ITEM	CONTROL	DESCRIPTION
1	Active Picture	The active picture display.
2	Picture Bar	Displays all pictures assigned to the data record. Click a picture on the bar to make it the active picture.
3	Add	Opens the Select Picture dialog. Use the dialog to a select a picture(s) and add it to the data record.
4	Remove	Removes the active picture from the data record.
5	Zoom	Zooms the active picture in/out.
6	Set Default	Sets the active picture as the default picture to display on the tab.

Chapter 1.14: Reporting

About the Reporting Module

The Reporting module is used to manage and run reports in Evolve FM. The Reporting module contains four reporting pages.

- Reports
- Saved Reports
- Published Reports
- Dynamic Spreadsheets

To Open the Reporting Module

1. On the Applications Menu, click Reporting.

The Reporting Interface

The reporting interface provides the controls used for configuration and execution of reports.

E Rep	corting red by Evelve					1 🖵 🗄	Ð 🕜
Reports	Saved Reports Published Repo	rts Dynamic Sprea	dsheets				
< Opt	tions 👯 💿 PDF 🔿 Excel	9 - 6	0 0 1 1 (4)		Search for C	۵ 🕲
+0.	Corporate HQ	1 Name	<u> </u>	Description	Туре	Category	^
*	Fitness Center	🖆 11 x 17 L		Drawing Report	Drawing	Standard Drawing	- A.
11-	- Aller - Contraction - Contractio - Contraction - Contraction - Contraction - Contraction - Contrac	🖻 17 x 22 L		Drawing Report	Drawing	Standard Drawing	1.00
	Union Park	🖻 22 x 34 L		Drawing Report	Drawing	Available upon request	
	- 🎽 💼 8	🖻 34 x 44 L	G	Drawing Report	Drawing	Avaiilable upon request	0
	- 🗆 🕋 9	🖻 8.5 x 11 L	(1	Drawing Report	Drawing	Standard Drawing	1
¥-0	Washington Street	🖻 8.5 x 11 L	with Data	Drawing Report with Data	Drawing	Standard Drawing	. e
+0.	DC Manufacturing	🖻 8.5 x 11 L	with Tier Data	Drawing Report with Allocation Data Sheets	Drawing	Standard Drawing	
-		🖻 8.5 x 11 F	with Data	Drawing Report with Data Drawing Report with Allocation Data Sheets	Drawing	Avaiilable upon request	
1	Harmon Technologies	🖻 8.5 x 11 F	with Tier Data		Drawing	Avaiilable upon request	
*	B. Manchester NH	Allocation Building Summary Asset Cost History 12mo		Cost Center Building Summary Asset Cost History Asset Lifetime Cost History	Space Data Asset Data Asset Data	Sample Report	
*0.	Merrimack NH					Custom Request	ж. 1
<u> </u>		Asset Co	st History Lifetime			Custom Request	
		Asset Inventory		Asset Inventory Report	Asset Data	Standard Asset	-54
×	awing Options (3	Asset Inventory by Category		Asset Inventory by Category Report	Asset Data	Standard Asset	
Category	Floor Plan 👻	Asset Inv	entory by Space	Asset Inventory by Space Report Asset Work Order History Building Summary Report Building Space Cost Center Detail	Asset Data Asset Data Data Space Data Space Data	Standard Asset	• • • •
Theme	Available Seats 👻	Asset W0	O History 12mo Idg Summary Report			Custom Request	
Space L		BOMA BI				Custom Request	
Legend	and the second	Building A	llocation Detail			Standard Space	
Tota		Building A	llocation Summary	Building Cost Center Summary		Standard Space	
Cot	unt	52			1	Name 👻 🛓	ñ" 4
м	CONTROL		DESCRIPTIC	N			
1	Report Grid		Report items related to the selected page.				
2	Configuration Op	tions	Report output configuration options.				
3	Drawing Options		Drawing rep	port output configuration optic	ons.		
4 Reporting Menu			Reporting to	ools.			

Configuration Options

The Configuration Options are used to filter a report's data set based on a Property, Building, or Floor location in Evolve FM. The report output format is also defined here.

ITEM	CONTROL	DESCRIPTION
1	Location Tree	Click a location(s) in the tree to filter the report data set to the location(s) selected.
2	Hide Options	Click to hide the Options panel.
3	Clear All	Click to clear all Location Tree checkboxes.
4	PDF	Produces the report in PDF format.
5	Excel	Produces the report in EXCEL format.



Drawing Options

Drawing Options are used to configure drawing reports. They are not available when a data report is selected in the report grid.

0	Options	ITEM	CONTROL	DESCRIPTION
× (2)		1	Show/Hide	Click to show/hide the Drawing Options.
Category*	Floor Plan Available Seats	2	Clear All	Click to clear all drawing options.
Space Label	Default Space	3	Category	REQUIRED. Select the drawing category to be used in the report.
Total Area	6	4	Theme	Use to apply a theme to the drawing. *
Count Count	Ŭ	5	Space Label	Use to display a label on the drawing.
		6	Legend	Use to add the Total Area, and/or Count to each key item in the drawing legend. *

*Not available in Dynamic Spreadsheets.

Reporting Menu

	23456	
Vie		
ITEM	CONTROL	DESCRIPTION
1	Configuration Options	Click to show the Configuration Options panel.
2	<u>Filters</u>	Click to show the Filters panel.
3	Preview	Click to generate the report.
4	Save As	Click to save the configuration options set on the Reports page, to the Saved Reports page.
5	Publish	Click to send a copy of the executed report, to the Published Reports page.

6 Display Options Grid display options menu.
--

Reports

The Reports page of the Reporting module, utilizes SQL Server Report Definition Language (RDL) files to format report data in Evolve FM. The RDL files contain the data retrieval and report layout for a report.

RDL Files Contain:

- Calculations
- Charts
- Images
- Graphs
- Text

Programs that create RDL files include SQL Server Reporting Services, Microsoft Visual Studio, and other thirdparty tools.

Report Grid

The Report Grid on the Reports page, shows a list of RDL reports available to the user.

REPORTS PAGE

oorts Saved Reports Published Repo	orts Dyn	amic Spreadsh eets				
Options 🗱 💿 PDF 🕓 Excel	P	- G C C :			Search for	۹ 🕲
Corporate HQ		† Name	Description	Туре	Category	~
Fitness Center	E	17 x 22 L	Drawing Report	Drawing	Standard Drawing	A
Liest	E	22 x 34 L	Drawing Report	Drawing	Standard Drawing	в
Union Park	E	8.5 x 11 L	Drawing Report	Drawing	Standard Drawing	
🗹 🍘 8	E	8.5 x 11 L with Data	Drawing Report with Data	Drawing	Standard Drawing	D
9 📾 🗐		Asset Inventory	Asset Inventory Report	Asset Data	Standard Asset	E
Washington Street		Space Inventory	Space Inventory List	Space Data	Standard Space	E.
DC Manufacturing		Space Inventory by Classification Summary	Space Inventory by Classification Summary	Space Data	Standard Space	0
	-	Space Occupancy by Allocation	Occupancy buo	Data	Standard Space	Here

Report Types

The Reporting module generates reports that contain drawing images, and reports that do not contain drawing images. The report types are identified by the icon located next to the report name.

ICON	REPORT TYPE
E	Drawing Report
	Data Report

Working with Reports

Run a Report

- 1. On the Reports page, select a report in the report grid.
- 2. In the Location Tree, select the locations to be included in the report data set.
- 3. If generating a drawing report, set your Drawing Options as needed.
- 4. Select your report format, PDF or EXCEL.
- 5. Click Preview to generate the report.

Dynamic Spreadsheets

Dynamic Spreadsheets offers both tabular grid reporting and RDL file reporting.

The Configuration Options located in Dynamic Spreadsheets, include additional data filter capability that can be used in combination with the Location Tree filter. Dynamic Spreadsheets additional data filters include:

- The Advanced Search Filters Panel
- The ability to create and save user defined filters.

The expanded filtering capability provided in Dynamic Spreadsheets, delivers data flexibility in RDL reports.

96

Report Grid

The Dynamic Spreadsheet report grid, is a read-only list of data records.

DYNAMIC SPREADSHEETS PAGE

Reporting	g Evolve					± (⊒ ∋ (
	ved Reports Published Reports	Dynamic Spread	sheets				
< Options	*** % @	ę					
Scope:	Spaces (Dynamic Spre 🐨	† Space ID	Space Name	Description	Space Category	Space Class	Spa
Filter.		B015			Service Area	Primary Circulation	Ves
Report		B101			Usable Area	Business Support	Cor
		B101A			Usable Area	Storage	Sto
		B101B			Usable Area	Storage	Sto
# 🔒 Co	rporate HQ	B101C			Usable Area	Storage	Sto
# 🗆 🔒 DC	C Manufacturing	B101D			Usable Area	Storage	Sto
Ha	rmon Technologies	B102			Usable Area	Business Support	Tra
-		B102A			Usable Area	Storage	Sto
🕂 📖 🛻 Manchester NH		B102B			Usable Area	Storage	Sto
# 🗆 🔒 Me	errimack NH	B102C			Usable Area	Storage	Sto
		B102D			Usable Area	Storage	Sto
		B103			Usable Area	Business Support	Tra
		B103A			Usable Area	Storage	Sto
		B103B			Usable Area	Storage	Sto
		B103C			Usable Area	Storage	Sto
		B103D			Usable Area	Storage	Sto
		B104			Usable Area	Business Support	Cor
		B104A			Usable Area	Storage	Sto
		B104B			Usable Area	Storage	Sto
		B104C			Usable Area	Storage	Sto
		B105			Usable Area	Office	Offi
		B106			Usable Area	Office	Off
T Drawing	Dotions	1852				Space ID	- 14

Dynamic Spreadsheet Controls

	(4)		-			
< Options	🗸 Options 👯 😵 🗔		CONTROL	DESCRIPTION		
Scope: Filter:	Spaces (Dynan Vacancies	1	Scope	Report data object type selection list (assets, moves, occupants, spaces). The		
Report:	Space Inventor PDF Exce			report grid populates with all data record related to the selected scope.		
		2	Filter	User defined filter list.		
		3	Report	RDL report file selection list.		
		4	Manage Filters	Opens the Manage Filters dialog, which is used to create user defined data filters.		

Export to EXCEL

X.

The Export List control, located on the grid menu, is used to export the report grid data to EXCEL.

About the Data Scope

The data records in the report grid, are driven by the Scope selection. Options include:

Assets

CAFM Resources

•

98

- Moves
- Occupants
- Spaces

Duplicate Data Records Display

It is important to note, that the report grid may include more than one row of data for data objects. For example, spaces can be assigned to one or more business units, therefore if you are displaying space objects and business units together in the report grid, all spaces that are assigned to more than one business unit, will display one row for each business unit assigned to the space.

The image below shows two rows for Space U8-388, since the space is assigned to two different business units, Finance and Human Resources.

Space ID	Space Category	Space Class	Space Sub Class	Area	Property	Building	Floor	Tier 1 Name
U8-388	Usable Area	Business Support	Conference 12	468.00	Corporate HQ	Union Park	8	Finance
U8-388	Usable Area	Business Support	Conference 12	468.00	Corporate HQ	Union Park	8	Human Resources

About Grid Filters

Dynamic Spreadsheets includes the <u>Advanced Search filters</u>, and the ability to create and manage <u>user defined</u> <u>filter sets</u>. Use either one of these search methods (they cannot be used simultaneously) together with the Location Tree, to filter the Dynamic Spreadsheet report grid to the data set needed in your report.

Filters Panel

Click the Filters icon to expand and display the Advanced Search filters on the Dynamic Spreadsheets grid.

2.10 User Management

TIP! If you are going to use a Grid View, select it on the Filters panel before selecting a user defined filter in the Filter list. The Filters icon 🗐

ADVANCED SEARCH FILTER, DYNAM	VIC SPREADSHEETS
-------------------------------	------------------

= Reporting					∋ 🥲			
Reports Sav	ed Reports Published Reports	Dynamic Spreadsheets						
Options	14 <mark>%</mark> 🗞 🗟	< Filters		Q: \Xi 🕮				
Scope:	Spaces (Dynamic Spre 🔻	Current View:	_	1 Space ID	Space Class	Space Sub Class	Area	Planned Headco
Filter:	•	Space Occupancy 🔻	*	U8-210	Office	Office Executive Sr	302.00	1
Report:	Space Occupancy by C 💌	Space ID	-	U8-218	Office	Office Executive Sr	308.00	1
	PDF Excel			U8-242	Office	Office Executive	252.24	1
Gor	rporate HQ	Space Name	-	U8-246	Office	Office Executive	269.42	1
	-			U8-248	Office	Office Executive Jr	233.02	1
+	Fitness Center	Description		U8-268	Office	Office Executive Jr	233.18	1
	Union Park	Description		U8-352	Office	Office Executive Jr	234.56	1
- 🗹	8			U8-354	Office	Office Executive Jr	222.00 284.02	1
	9	Space Category	*	U8-396	Office	Office Executive Sr	284.02	1
	Washington Street	Space Class	+					
	Manufacturing	Office						
Her 📙 🔒 Har	Harmon Technologies							
🐨 🗆 🖴 Manchester NH								
🖶 🗌 🔒 Mer	rrimack NH							
				4				
- V Drawing	Options	Apply Cle	ar	9			Space ID	▼ 14

will be hidden on the grid menu once a user defined filter is selected.

Report Attribute & Filter Exclusion Identification

An RDL report file selected in the Report list, may not be configured with all of the data attributes displayed in the report grid, or may be configured with its own data filter configured in the RDL report file.

In cases like this, a server message will display in Dynamic Spreadsheets to make the user aware that the RDL file is not configured with data/filters applied to the grid, so they cannot not be included in the report.

) Server Message	
Items highlighted in red are not available in the selected report. Red highlighted fields and filters will not be passed to the report	ort.

User Defined Filters

The Manage Filters dialog is used to create user defined filter sets for use in Dynamic Spreadsheets.

NOTE! User defined filter sets are created at the user level in Evolve FM, when a user creates a filter set, it is only available to that user.

Manage Filters Dialog

The Manage Filters dialog is split into two groups, the Filters group, which is used to manage the filter sets defined by the user, and the Detail group, which is used to configure the search criteria for each filter set.

To Open the Manage Filters Dialog

1. On the Dynamic Spreadsheets Configuration Options panel, click the Manage Filters icon.

CAFM Resources

MANAGE FILTERS DIALOG

Manage Filters				
Filters	1	etail 5		
🚨 Occ	upiable in Sales	ace Sub Class = Workstation AND		
a Occ	upiable Space	ailable Seats > 0 AND		
🚨 Res	trooms - FCA			
👵 Vac	ancies			
🚨 Vac	ant Executive Office			
🚨 Vac	ant Workstations			
🚨 Wor	kstations			
*- 0 / *-				
0				
Ø		Close		
TEM	CONTROL	DESCRIPTION		
1	Filters Group	A list of data filters created by the user, and the Filters group controls (2-4).		
2	Add (filter)	Click to add a new data filter.		
3	Remove (filter)	Click to remove a selected data filter.		
4	Edit (filter)	Click to edit a selected data filter.		
5	Detail Group	The search criteria in a selected data filter, and the Detail group controls (6-8)		
6	Add (detail)	Add a new search criteria statement to a selected data filter.		
7	Remove (detail)	Remove a selected search criteria statement.		
8	Edit (detail)	Edit a selected search criteria statement.		

About Search Criteria Statements

The image below illustrates a two-line search criteria statement configured in the Detail group.

Manage Filters			
Filters	Detail		
💩 Vacant Executive Office	Space Sub Class = Workstation AND		
S Vacant Workstations	Available Seats > 0 AND		

When the search is executed, Evolve FM will process the search criteria one line at a time, first to last, to qualify data that meets the criteria set in the statement.

Each line of a search criteria statement is comprised of the following items.

CONTROL	NOTE	
Space Attribute	The space data attribute to be used in the search.	
Operator	The operator to be assigned to the Value of the attribute.	
Value	The attribute's data value to be used in the search.	
Connector	A relational operator (AND or OR) to connect each line of the search criteria statement. - The AND operator displays a record if all the conditions separated by AND is TRUE. - The OR operator displays a record in any of the conditions separated by OR is TRUE.	

About Relational Operators

Search criteria relational operators are used to link the space data Attribute to the Value.

OPERATOR	DESCRIPTION	CRITERIA DATA TYPE
<	Less than	Numeric
<=	Less than or equal to	Numeric
<>	Not Equal to	Alphanumeric
=	Equal to	Alphanumeric
>	Greater than	Numeric
>=	Greater than or equal to	Numeric
Like	Match a portion of the Value	 Use the LIKE operator with the wildcard symbol % (percent) added to the Value field. Examples: LIKE office% will find data beginning with the word "office". LIKE %office will find data ending with the word "office". LIKE %office% will find data containing the word "office".

Working with Dynamic Spreadsheets

Run a Report from Dynamic Spreadsheets

Export Report Data to EXCEL

- 1. In the Scope List, select the data set needed.
- 2. Arrange your Grid View as needed.
- 3. Filter the report grid using either of the following filter methods:
 - The Location Tree.
 - The filter controls on the Filters panel, or the Filter selection list (user defined filters).
- 4. On the grid menu, click Export \square .

Run an RDL Report from Dynamic Spreadsheets

- 1. In the Scope list, select the data set needed.
- 2. Filter the report grid using either of the following filter methods:
 - The Location Tree.
 - The filter controls on the Filters panel, or the Filter selection list (user defined filters).

- 3. In the Report list, select the report.
- 4. If generating a drawing report set your Drawing Options as needed.
- 5. Select your report format, PDF or EXCEL.
- 6. Click Preview to generate the report.

Create a User Defined Filter

- 1. On the Dynamic Spreadsheets Configuration Options panel, click the Manage Filters control.
- 2. On the Manage filters dialog, in the Filters group, click Add.
- 3. Enter the name of your filter.
- 4. Optional: Enter a description of your filter.
- 5. Click Save.

Build the search criteria statement

- 6. In the Filter group, select your filter name.
- 7. In the Detail group, click Add.
- 8. Select the data Attribute to be used as the search data set.
- 9. Select the search Operator.
- 10. Enter the data Value to be searched.
- 11. In the Connector field, do one of the following:
 - If you are not adding an additional search criteria statement, move to step 12.
 - Select the AND or the OR Operator to connect the next line in a multi-line statement.
- 12. Click Save.
- 13. Repeat steps 7-12 for each additional line in your search criteria statement.
- 14. Click Close

Apply/Clear a User Defined Filter

Apply a User Defined Filter to the Report Grid

1. In the Filters list, select the filter to be applied.

Clear a user defined filter from the Report Grid

1. In the Filters list, select None.

Edit/Delete a User Defined Filter

Edit the Name of the Filter

1. On the Dynamic Spreadsheets Configuration Options panel, click the Manage Filters control.

CAFM Resources

- 2. On the Manage filters dialog, in the Filters group, select the filter name to be edited.
- 3. On the Filter group menu, click Edit.
- 4. Edit the name of the filter.
- 5. Click Save. Delete a

filter

- 1. On the Dynamic Spreadsheets Configuration Options panel, click the Manage Filters control.
- 2. On the Manage filters dialog, in the Filters group, select the filter name to be deleted.
- 3. On the Filter group menu, click Remove.

Edit a search criteria statement

- 1. On the Dynamic Spreadsheets Configuration Options panel, click the Manage Filters control.
- 2. On the Manage filters dialog, in the Filters group, select the filter name to be edited.
- 3. On the Detail group, select the criteria statement to be edited.
- 4. On the Detail group menu, click Edit.
- 5. Edit the statement as needed.
- 6. Click Save.

Delete a search criteria statement

- 1. On the Dynamic Spreadsheets Configuration Options panel, click the Manage Filters control.
- 2. On the Manage filters dialog, in the Filters group, select the filter name to be edited.
- 3. On the Detail group, select the criteria statement to be deleted.
- 4. On the Detail group menu, click Remove.